
SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE 

BOARD OF REGENTS REGULAR MEETING 

Thursday, March 28, 2024 

Lunch – 12:15 P.M. 

Enoch Kelly Haney Center – Room #204 

Business Session  

Enoch Kelly Haney Center – Board Room 

1:00 P.M. 

I. CALL TO ORDER

II. ROLL CALL OF MEMBERS

III. INTRODUCTION OF GUESTS

IV. CONSIDERATION AND VOTE TO APPROVE/DISAPPROVE MINUTES 

Regular Meeting February 15, 2024

V. COMMUNICATIONS TO THE BOARD

Financial Report – February 29, 2024

- E&G and Auxiliary Purchases over $15,000 for February - None

VI. HEARING OF DELEGATIONS

None at the time of filing of the agenda.

VII. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

✓ Personnel Update

✓ Campus Activities

✓ Legislative Activities

✓ Upcoming Events

VIII. BUSINESS

A. Review and consider approval of bid from Dave Haynie LLC to renovate a

classroom for a simulation nursing lab

Board Action:  Approve/Reject Bid 



Agenda 

SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 

March 28, 2024 

Page 2 of 2 

IX. CONSENT AGENDA

Consider approval of the following items:

✓ Program Modification – Engineering Technology Associate in Applied Science

✓ Amended 2024-2025 Academic Calendar

X. ADJOURNMENT

The Board of Regents may discuss, vote to approve, vote to disapprove, vote to table, vote to 

take items out of order, or decide not to discuss or vote on any item on the agenda. 

If you need a disability-related accommodation or wheelchair access information, please contact: 

Office of ADA compliance at 405-382-9216.  Requests should be made by March 27, 2024.  

E. Consideration of any matter not known about or which could not have been

reasonably foreseen prior to the posting of the agenda

Board Action:  As Appropriate 

B. Review and consider approval of bid from Affinity Corp for motor pool secured

parking

Board Action:  Approve/Reject Bid 

C. Review and consider approval of contract with Enterprise FM Trust for fleet

management

Board Action:  Approve/Reject Contract 

D. Possible consideration and possible action regarding awarding of Emeritus

status to Dr. Linda Goeller

Board Action:  Approve/Reject 



Minutes 

SEMINOLE STATE COLLEGE  

BOARD OF REGENTS REGULAR MEETING 

February 15, 2024 

I. Call to Order

The Seminole State College Board of Regents’ regular monthly meeting was called to

order at 1:00 p.m. in the Board Room of the Enoch Kelly Haney Center.

II. Roll Call of Members

Roll call was conducted. Regent Franklin and Regent Cain were absent. The Regents

present were Morgan, Ready, Hyden, Pitts, and Donaho.

III. Introduction of Guests

President Reynolds introduced administrators and staff present at the meeting.  Special

recognition was given to Marc Hunter, IT Director and Campus Information Security

Officer; Holly Wilson-Byrd, Human Resources Director; Edie Cathey, Director of

Enrollment Management; Dr. Misty Gray, Health Sciences Division Chair; and Whitney

Herzog, Assistant Attorney General.

IV. Minutes

There being no additions or corrections to the minutes of the regular meeting held

January 18, 2024; Regent Donaho made a motion to approve the minutes as written and

Regent Pitts seconded the motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes;

Ready, yes; Pitts, yes and Hyden, yes.

V. Communications to the Board

Financial Report – Ms. Melanie Rinehart, Vice President for Fiscal Affairs, presented a

review of the College’s revenue and expenses through January 31, 2024.  Regent Morgan

made a motion to approve the Financial Report as presented and Regent Ready seconded

the motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes

and Hyden, yes.

Purchases over $15,000 for January - None

VI. Hearing of Delegations

None

VII. President’s Report

President Reynolds discussed items under the President’s Report and the Business

portion of the agenda by utilizing a PowerPoint presentation. (See enclosed copy of the

PowerPoint presentation)



Minutes 

SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 

February 15, 2024 

Page 2 

Personnel Update – President Reynolds informed the Board that Michelle Pruitt has been 

named the Upward Bound Director and David Cobb, IT Technician has announced his 

intent to retire the end of 2024. 

 

Enrollment Report – Edie Cathey, Director of Enrollment Management gave a report on 

enrollment and went over campus efforts to increase enrollment in the next semesters. 

 

Campus Activities – President Reynolds gave the Board members information about the 

following campus activities: 

• Maintenance, Campus Police and Dr. Bill Knowles helped with an emergency 

clean up project after pipes burst in Tanner Hall 

• The SSC President’s Leadership Class visited the Boys and Girls Club of 

Seminole Nation 

• The Southeast Oklahoma Legislative Briefing was held on January 6th at Pete’s 

Place in Krebs, OK 

• The Oklahoma State Regents for Higher Education held their regular meeting on 

the SSC Campus on February 1st 

• Ryan Carlisle was selected to participate in the George and Donna Nigh 

Leadership Academy 

• Higher Education Day at the Capitol held on February 8th was attended by many 

SSC representatives and students 

• The Talent Search Grant took students to a Thunder Basketball game 

• The Social Sciences Division will hold a President’s Day observance event on 

February 16th highlighting “Dwight D. Eisenhower, Soldier and Statesman” 

 

Nursing Program Update – President Reynolds gave the Regents an update on the 

Nursing Program. 

 

Honors – President Reynolds told the Regents that the SSC Educational Foundation 

received the David L. Boren Award at the Seminole Chamber of Commerce Annual 

Banquet.  

 

Wellness Center Update – President Reynolds gave the Regents an update on the 

construction of the new wellness center.  She also told the Regents that they are invited 

for a tour of the facility after the meeting today. 

 

IT Security Update – Marc Hunter, IT Director and Campus Information Security Officer 

gave an update on campus information security efforts. 

 

VIII. Business  

 

Approval of Resolution Supporting Current Restrictions Regarding Guns on 

Campus – President Reynolds presented the Board with a proposed resolution for the 

SSC Board of Regents supporting the current restrictions regarding guns on college 

campuses.  President Reynolds recommended approval.  Regent Donaho made a motion 

to approve the resolution as presented and Regent Morgan seconded this motion.  Roll 

call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes and Hyden, yes. 

 

 



Minutes 

SSC Board of Regents Regular Meeting 

February 15, 2024 

Page 3 

 

 

Ratification of the naming of “Lloyd Simmons Field” at the Brian Crawford 

Memorial Sports Complex – President Reynolds presented the Board with information 

about the proposed naming of the SSC Trojan baseball field the “Lloyd Simmons Field” 

at the Brian Crawford Memorial Sports Complex.  Regent Morgan made a motion to 

ratify the naming of the “Lloyd Simmons Field” and Regent Pitts seconded the motion. 

Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes and Hyden, 

yes. 

 

Motion to Enter into Executive Session to discuss EEOC Charge #564-2023-02134 –

The Board retired into executive session to discuss EEOC Charge #564-2023-02134.  

Regent Morgan made a motion to enter into executive session and Regent Pitts seconded 

this motion.  Roll call was as follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes 

and Hyden, yes. 

 

Motion to Enter into Open Session – Regent Morgan made a motion that the Board go 

back into open session to present a motion on the items discussed in executive session.  

Regent Ready seconded this motion to enter back into open session.  Roll call was as 

follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes and Hyden, yes. 

 

Consideration of Motion for items discussed in Executive Session – Regent Pitts made 

a motion to approve the terms discussed in executive session regarding EEOC Charge 

#564-2023-02134.  Regent Morgan seconded this motion.  Roll call was as follows:  

Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes and Hyden, yes. 

 

IX. Consent Agenda 

 

Regents were presented information concerning items on the Consent Agenda. President 

Reynolds recommended approval of these items. Regent Pitts made a motion to approve 

the Consent Agenda items and Regent Morgan seconded the motion. Roll call was as 

follows:  Morgan, yes; Donaho, yes; Ready, yes; Pitts, yes and Hyden, yes. 

 

Approval of the following items: 

 

• Program Modification – Associate in Science in Criminal Justice 

• Program Modification – Associate in Science in Psychology 

 

X. Adjournment 

 

There being no further business or discussion Regent Morgan made a motion to adjourn 

the meeting at 3:27 p.m.  Regent Donaho seconded the motion.  This motion was 

approved unanimously. 

 

____________________________ 

 Kim Hyden, Chair 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted Fund 

 Capital 
Projects Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI 

Trust Fund 

 Federal 
Restricted 

Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

 Capital Assets 
and Long-Term 

Debt Fund  Total All Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,567,667  1,191,962  1,182,532  2,135  (5,244)  31,698  (2,800)  - 5,967,949 
Accounts Receivable, net -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  
Other Accrued Income 86,590  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  86,590  
Capital Assets, net -  -  -  -  -  -  -  21,892,056  21,892,056  

Total Assets 3,654,256  1,191,962  1,182,532  2,135  (5,244)  31,698  (2,800)  21,892,056  27,946,595  

Accounts Payable (650) 54,445 -  -  -  -  -  -  53,795  
Other Accrued Expenses - - -  2,135  -  -  -  -  2,135  

Due To/From  Other Funds - - -  -  -  -  -  -  -  

Long-Term Debt - - -  -  -  -  -  17,345,792  17,345,792  

Total Liabilities (650) 54,445 - 2,135 -  -  -  17,345,792  17,401,723  

Beginning Net Position 3,883,077  310,614  796,141  - (5,244) 79,918  (2,800)  4,546,264  9,607,970  
Change in Net Position (228,171)  826,903  386,391  - - (48,220)  -  -  936,904  

Ending Net Position 3,654,906  1,137,517  1,182,532  - (5,244) 31,698  (2,800)  4,546,264  10,544,873  

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Net Assets

As of February 29, 2024

Page 1



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted Fund 

 Capital Projects 
Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI Trust 

Fund 
 Federal 

Restricted Fund  CARES Act Fund 

 Capital Assets 
and Long-Term 

Debt Fund  Total All Funds 
Revenues

Tuition and fees, net 3,766,545$            947,598$             -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     -$                     4,714,143$          
State appropriations  4,217,830              -                       1,244,533            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       5,462,363            
Federal grants and contracts -                         6,695,619            -                       -                       -                       8,000                   451,792               -                       7,155,411            
State and private grants and contracts 26,530                   1,184,919            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,211,449            
Housing & Food Service -                         805,744               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       805,744               
Bookstore -                         1,046,812            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,046,812            
Other revenues 487,546                 1,051,439            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,538,984            

Total operating revenues 8,498,451              11,732,131          1,244,533            -                       -                       8,000                   451,792               -                       21,934,906          

Expenditures
Compensation and benefits 5,895,158              2,195,627            -                       -                       -                       21,334                 56,409                 -                       8,168,528            
Contractual services 740,482                 668,581               -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       1,409,063            
Supplies and materials 307,586                 4,783,419            295,447               -                       -                       11,084                 395,383               -                       5,792,920            
Scholarships and fellowships 960,702                 2,259,301            -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       3,220,003            
Communications 59,049                   7,009                   -                       -                       -                       11,167                 -                       -                       77,226                 
Depreciation -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       
Utilities 331,341                 94,966                 -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       426,307               
Other expenditures 432,303                 896,325               562,694               -                       -                       12,634                 -                       -                       1,903,957            

Total Operating Expenses 8,726,622              10,905,228          858,142               -                       -                       56,220                 451,792               -                       20,998,003          

Operating income (loss) (228,171)                826,903               386,391               -                       -                       (48,220)                -                       -                       936,904               

Transfers from (to) -                         -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       -                       

Change in Net Position (228,171)                826,903               386,391               -                       -                       (48,220)                -                       -                       936,904               

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

Page 2



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

 Education and 
General Fund 

 Auxiliary and 
Restricted 

Fund 
 Capital 

Projects Fund 

 Payroll 
Withholding 

Fund 
 OKHEEI 

Trust Fund 

 Federal 
Restricted 

Fund 
 CARES Act 

Fund 

 Capital 
Assets and 
Long-Term 
Debt Fund 

 Total All 
Funds 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,350,516$       376,686$         690,489$       2,135$           (5,244)$          75,925$         (2,800)$          -$               4,487,707$    

Change in Net Position (228,171)           826,903           386,391         -                 -                 (48,220)          -                 -                 936,904         

Changes not providing (using) cash 445,322            (11,626)            105,652         (0)                   -                 3,992             -                 -                 543,339         

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Ending 3,567,667$       1,191,962$      1,182,532$    2,135$           (5,244)$          31,698$         (2,800)$          -$               5,967,949$    

Seminole State College
Combining Statement of Changes in Cash and Cash Equivalants

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

Page 3 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUE

State Appropriations 451,660$             4,217,830$           6,026,441          4,302,879$           

Tuition 1,064,188            1,578,414             2,649,748          2,278,783             
Non-Resident Tuition Fees 261,854               583,801                654,027             562,463                
Remedial Course Fee 14,585                 44,106                  37,832               32,536                  

Tuition 1,340,627            2,206,321             3,341,607          2,873,782             
STEM Academic Excellence Fee 42,522                 116,621                115,470             99,304                  
LAH Academic Excellence Fee 20,537                 52,529                  47,456               40,812                  
Bus & Ed Academic Excellence Fee 21,813                 63,216                  66,418               57,119                  
Health Science Academic Excellence Fee 3,705                   11,173                  12,457               10,713                  
Social Science Academic Excellence Fee 18,751                 52,713                  49,022               42,159                  
Physical Therapist Assistance Fee 1,220                   4,155                    3,668                 3,154                    
Technology Service Fee 91,129                 260,403                261,000             224,460                
Bus And Ind Additional Fees -                       -                        500                    430                       
Nursing Fee 26,143                 72,381                  76,062               65,413                  
Laboratory Fees 19,229                 67,797                  70,787               60,877                  
Medical Lab Tech Fee 1,380                   5,706                    8,776                 7,547                    
Electronic Academic Access Fee 24,643                 80,970                  76,800               66,048                  
Dist Education/Outreach Fee 115,375               314,255                306,377             263,484                

Academic Course Fees 386,446               1,101,919             1,094,793          941,522                
Late Payment Fees -                       1,580                    5,458                 4,694                    
Application For Admission Fees 855                      12,598                  11,225               9,654                    
Assessment Fee 29,227                 85,518                  86,063               74,014                  
Refund Per Legal Settlement (180)                     (180)                      -                        
Ace Testing Fees -                       1,260                    2,590                 2,227                    
Hybrid Course Fee -                       -                        -                        
Sr Citizens Discount -                       -                        -                        
Enrollment Seminars -                       69                         -                        
Clep Testing Fees -                       35                         190                    163                       
Library Automation Fee 27,797                 79,566                  79,643               68,493                  
Clearing Other Special Enrollment -                       -                        -                    -                        
Records Fee 20,159                 57,793                  57,765               49,678                  
Parking Fees 1,525                   25,648                  27,040               23,254                  
Student Id Fee 1,511                   14,077                  14,964               12,869                  
Accident Shield Fee 2,149                   65,271                  97,035               83,450                  
Special Testing Fees 75                        2,625                    3,350                 2,881                    
International Student Fee -                       3,440                    8,138                 6,999                    
Compliance Fee 19,366                 56,851                  57,360               49,330                  
Safety Fee 19,198                 51,975                  49,978               42,981                  
ARPA Grant-Nursing Revenue -                       7,616                    -                    -                        

Other Student Fees 121,682               465,742                500,799             430,687                

Total Tuition and Fees 1,848,754            3,773,982             4,937,199          4,245,991             

Other Income (5,644)                  506,639                500,544             430,468                

Total Revenue 2,294,770            8,498,451             11,464,184        8,979,338             

EXPENDITURES

Instruction 407,130               3,466,208             5,322,846          3,587,598             
Research -                       -                        -                    -                        
Public Service -                       -                        -                    -                        
Academic Support 24,082                 220,238                337,427             227,426                
Student Services 204,888               1,313,350             1,695,523          1,142,783             
Institutional Support 190,453               1,329,702             1,914,437          1,290,331             
Physical Plant 142,314               1,471,634             2,462,821          1,659,941             
Scholarships and Tuition Waivers 1,515                   925,490                995,000             945,250                

Total Expenditures 970,382               8,726,622             12,728,054        8,853,328             

Total Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 1,324,388$          (228,171)               (1,263,870)$      126,009$              

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Education and General - Statement of Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

BUDGET

Page 4



YEAR
CURRENT TO 

MONTH DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUES
Contractual Food Service 201,491$           574,362$           815,542$           644,278$              
Bookstore 192,465             1,078,599          1,346,480          1,227,990             
Institutional Support 206,618             608,385             622,685             519,319                
Seminole/Roesler Residential Centers 316,324             807,889             1,073,670          826,726                
Student Activities 121,939             351,856             353,477             298,688                

Total Revenues 1,038,838          3,421,092          4,211,854          3,517,001             

EXPENDITURES
Contractual Food Service 101,370             481,704             815,542             598,608                
Bookstore 41,499               669,313             951,358             772,104                
Institutional Support 844,325             1,061,340          1,109,000          985,901                
Seminole/Roesler Residential Centers 64,041               551,279             799,351             558,437                
Student Activities 368                    46,775               358,530             318,733                

Total Expenditures 1,051,603          2,810,410          4,033,781          3,233,783             

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (12,765)$            610,682$           178,073$           283,218$              

Seminole State College
Auxiliary Summary Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

BUDGET

Page 5



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Meals revenue 201,491$                 571,940$           800,000$            632,000$          
Other revenue -                          2,422                 15,542                12,278              

Total revenue 201,491                   574,362             815,542              644,278            

Supplies -                          1,204                 5,370                  3,942                
Miscellaneous Expenditures -                          -                     -                      -                    
Contractual Service 100,875                   475,420             800,000              587,200            
Professional Services 495                          5,079                 10,172                7,466                

Total expenditures 101,370                   481,704             815,542              598,608            

Net profit (loss) 100,122$                 92,658$             -$                    45,670$            

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Food Service - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

BUDGET

Page 6 



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Sales revenue 191,516$          1,046,812$           1,313,375$    1,197,798$     
Other revenue 949                   31,787                  33,105.00      30,192$          

Total revenue 192,465            1,078,599             1,346,480      1,227,990       

Purchase For Resale 23,181              547,180                781,500         652,553          

Professional Salaries, F.T. 3,425                27,398                  42,245           28,163            
Classified Salaries, F.T. 4,734                37,829                  38,049           25,366            
Classified Salaries, P.T. -                    1,273                    1,295             863                 
Student Wages -                    -                        5,000             3,333              
Fringe Benefits 4,662                34,152                  45,769           30,513            

Compensation expendiures 12,820              100,652                132,358         88,239            

Travel -                    50                         2,000             1,670              
Supplies 10                     6,949                    7,000             5,845              
Miscellaneous Expenditures -                    125                       1,000             835                 
Contractual Service 5,488                13,893                  24,800           20,708            
Sponsorships -                    464                       1,500             1,253              
Postage -                    -                        1,200             1,002              

Other expenditures 5,498                21,480                  37,500           31,313            
Total expenditures 41,499              669,313                951,358         772,104          

Net profit (loss) 150,966$          409,286$              395,122$       455,886$        

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Bookstore Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

BUDGET

Page 7



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

REVENUE

Student Service Fee 98,110$                  285,152$             288,042$      240,227          
Infrastructure Fee 105,065                  310,590               313,283        261,278          

Student Fees 203,176                  595,742               601,325        501,505          
Other Income-Overpayment 2,399                      3,239                   8,368            6,979              
Refunds / Reimbursements -                          13                        20                 17                   
Interest Income -                          -                       1,484            1,238              
Seminar fees -                          -                       -                -                  
Vending maching commissions 44                           919                      1,243            1,037              
Photocopy revenue -                          -                       -                -                  
ATM other -                          4,248                   -                -                  
Repair and replacemnet, damaged property -                          -                       -                -                  
Haney Center 1,000                      4,225                   10,245          8,544              

Other income 3,443                      12,643                 21,360          17,814            

Total Revenue 206,618                  608,385               622,685        519,319          

EXPENDITURES

Professional Services 1,000                      114,836               150,000        133,350          
Personnel expenditures 1,000                      115,793               150,000        133,350          

Travel -                          -                       3,000            2,667              
Supplies 155                         2,235                   7,000            6,223              
Miscellaneous Expenditures 1,059                      22,438                 49,000          43,561            
Contractual Service 395                         2,800                   -                -                  
Housing and book scholarships 841,461                  917,638               900,000        800,100          
Haney Center 254                         435                      -                -                  

Total Expenditures 844,325                  1,061,340            1,109,000     985,901          

Total Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures (637,707)$               (452,954)$            (486,315)$     (466,582)         

Seminole State College
Institutional Support- Statement of Budgeted Revenues and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

ACTUAL BUDGET

Page 8



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Rental revenue - Dorms 315,934$         800,879           1,055,388$      812,649                
Other revenue 390                  7,010               18,282             14,077                  

Total revenue 316,324           807,889           1,073,670        826,726                

Professional Salaries, F.T. 3,466.50          27,732             41,598             27,732                  
Professional Salaries, P.T. 858.33             6,734               41,598             27,732                  
Professional Services -                   468                  6,000               4,224.00               
Fringe Benefits 2,515.52          20,107             32,135             21,423.33             

Personnel expenditures 6,840               55,041             121,331           81,111                  
Travel -                   262                  1,500               1,056                    
Supplies 1,572               22,121             36,320             25,569                  
Miscellaneous Expenditures 366                  3,641               500                  352                       
Lease Payments 45,412             363,299           500,000           352,000                
Contractual Service 228                  16,263             8,700               6,125                    
Utilities 9,622               90,651             131,000           92,224                  

Other expenditures 57,201             496,238           678,020           477,326                
Total expenditures 64,041             551,279           799,351           558,437                

Net profit (loss) 252,283$         256,611           274,319$         268,288$              

ACTUAL BUDGET

Seminole State College
Housing - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

Page 9



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

CURRENT YEAR-TO-DATE ANNUAL YEAR-TO-DATE

Student activity fee 109,846$                 316,334$              317,770$         268,516$           
Cultural & recreation fee 12,093                     35,522                  35,707             30,172               

Total Revenue 121,939                   351,856                353,477           298,688             

Athletic Administration -                           79                         216,915           192,837             
National Tournaments -                           11,627                  50,000             44,450               
Golf-Women -                           600                       800                  711                    
Golf-Men -                           800                       800                  711                    
Womens Soccer -                           5,415                    17,619             15,663               
Men's Basketball -                           2,565                    9,000               8,001                 
Women's Basketball -                           2,915                    3,295               2,929                 
Volleyball -                           4,647                    3,600               3,200                 
Baseball -                           7,422                    18,560             16,500               
Softball -                           3,265                    19,441             17,283               
Student Government -                           1,969                    6,500               5,779                 
Livestock Judging Team -                           -                        -                   -                     
PLC 368                          5,472                    12,000             10,668               
SSC Aggie (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
Phi Theta Kappa (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
NASA (AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     
Student Nurse Association(AFAC) -                           -                        -                   -                     

Total Expenditures 368                          46,775                  358,530           318,733             

Revenue Over (Under) Expenditures 121,571$                 305,081$              (5,053)$            (20,045)$            

ACTUAL

Seminole State College
Student Activities - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

BUDGET

Page 10



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Revenue Expenditures Net

PELL 2,620,533$             2,620,513$        20$                      
PELL Recovery 25                           -                     25                        
SEOG 76,228                    76,228               -                       
Direct Loans 1,313,548               1,313,548          -                       
Student loan repayment 42                           -                     42                        
College Work Study 31,099                    38,503               (7,404)                  
SSC Foundation -                         45,884               (45,884)                
Private Scholarships 492,604                  586,505             (93,901)                
Private Loans 128,301                  -                     128,301               
Cherokee Student Grants 34,875                    32,625               2,250                   
Sac & Fox Student Grants 18,112                    19,713               (1,601)                  
Creek Tribe Student Grants 4,500                      2,000                 2,500                   
Shawnee Tribe Student Grants 13,780                    12,691               1,089                   
Choctaw Tribe Student Grants 38,907                    30,445               8,462                   
Citizen Pottawatomie Stud Grnt 36,197                    42,847               (6,650)                  
Chickasaw Tribe Stdt Grants 68,786                    62,985               5,801                   
OHLAP 307,304                  198,057             109,247               
Misc Indial Tribal Grants 22,895                    22,695               200                      
Oklahoma Tuition Aid Grant 234,100                  118,000             116,100               

Subtotal Financial Aid 5,441,836               5,223,239          218,597               
Title III Engaging Students in Science -                         -                     -                       
Ub Math/Science #2 178,689                  178,489             200                      
Ub Math/Science #1 161,732                  161,732             -                       
Upward Bound #2 180,962                  181,105             (143)                     
Upward Bound #1 261,038                  261,238             (200)                     
Talent Search West 196,406                  196,406             -                       
Talent Search Central 258,807                  258,215             592                      
TANF 164,772                  102,536             62,236                 
TANF - Ada -                         49,780               (49,780)                
PIE Academy -                         -                     -                       
Dream Catcher Gear Up 554,968                  556,610             (1,643)                  
STEM Student Support 190,797                  202,963             (12,166)                
Student Support Serices 203,549                  217,896             (14,348)                
NASNTI Grant 338,963                  199,014             139,949               
NASNTI Grant -                         118,889             (118,889)              
NASNTI Supplemental Grant -                         19,532               (19,532)                
Scholars for Excellence 41,070                    50,049               (8,979)                  
Carl Perkins -                         -                     -                       

Subtotal Federal Grants 2,731,753               2,754,455          (22,702)                
Care Bears 23,004                    16,715               6,289                   
Nursing Student'S 1,861                      1,415                 446                      
Residential Deposits 6,100                      -                     6,100                   
Professional Staff Council 1,140                      1,076                 64                        
Upward Bound #2 Fund Raiser 5,728                      6,059                 (331)                     
Upward Bound M/S Fund Raiser 4,629                      6,140                 (1,511)                  
Ub Ms #2 Fund Raiser 2,559                      4,205                 (1,646)                  
Upward Bound #1 Fundraiser 7,653                      10,257               (2,604)                  

Subtoal Other Restricted 52,675                    45,868               6,806                   

Total 8,226,263$             8,023,562$        202,702$             

Seminole State College
Restricted Funds - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

Page 11



UNAUDITED - FOR INTERNAL USE ONLY

Revenue Expenditures Net

NURSING COPY MACHINE -                         450                    (450)                    
VA REPORT FEE -                         220                    (220)                    
FACULTY SENATE 2,453                     1,680                 772                      
SEMINOLE STATE AGGIE CLUB -                         1,265                 (1,265)                 
UB #1 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 5,304                     -                     5,304                   
PHI THETA KAPPA 665                        55                      610                      
UBMS SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 3,886                     2,130                 1,756                   
UB M/S #2 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 4,707                     -                     4,707                   
UB2 SUMMER FOOD PROGRAM 5,168                     -                     5,168                   
MLT BOC FEE 1,548                     2,250                 (702)                    
ADMIN PROGRAM ATHLETICS 31                          -                     31                        
CLASSIFIED STAFF ASSOCIATION 1,066                     952                    114                      
SEMINOLE TRIBE STUDENT GRANTS 24,600                   24,600               -                      
MU ALPHA THETA (MATH HONORS) -                         72                      (72)                      
SIGMA KAPPA DELTA -                         152                    (152)                    
SHOTGUN SHOOTING TEAM 3,465                     3,503                 (38)                      
P.R.I.D.E. 321                        240                    81                        
OTHER ORGANIZATIONS AND ACTIVITIES 31,562                   33,686               (2,124)                 

84,776$                  71,256$             13,519$               

Seminole State College
Campus Organizations - Statement of Revenue and Expenditures

For the Period July 1 through February 29, 2024

Page 12







Alecia Bailey 
1125 North 9th Street Milwaukee, WI 53233 

January 22, 2024 

NASNTI Director 
Seminole State College 
2701 Boren Blvd, Seminole, OK 74868 

Dear NASNTI Director, 

I am writing to express my interest in the Computer Science Specialist position at Seminole 
State College, as advertised. I am excited about the opportunity to contribute to the revitalization 
of your computer science program. My academic background, including a BSc degree in 
Computer Science and a MSc. with a concentration in Information Security, aligns well with the  
requirements of this role.  

During my time at Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute, I not only excelled academically but also 
gained valuable experience as a security researcher and teaching assistant. Those roles required 
me to execute incident response plans, conduct risk assessments, and assist in the development of 
course materials, all of which are directly relevant to the duties outlined in your job description. 

Furthermore, my experience at eGOV Jamaica Limited as an Operations Engineer and my role as 
a Program Office Assistant at Envision by WorldStrides provided me with a solid foundation in 
collaborating with diverse teams. These experiences have honed my skills in IT infrastructure, 
database management, and project management, making me well-equipped to lead the 
revitalization of the computer science program at Seminole State College. 

What excites me most about this opportunity is the prospect of developing new program 
emphasis areas in Security, Programming, and Esports. My direct experience in game 
development and cybersecurity, along with my teaching background, positions me uniquely to 
contribute significantly to these areas. I am particularly enthusiastic about making the program 
accessible in various modalities, leveraging my knowledge in cloud technologies and online 
educational practices. 

I am impressed by Seminole State College’s commitment to empowering people for academic 
success and lifelong learning, and I share your core values of: Compassion, Opportunity, 
Respect, and Excellence. I am keen to bring my technical skills, educational experience, and 
passion for computer science to your institution. 

Thank you for considering my application. I look forward to the opportunity to discuss how my 
experience and skills would be beneficial to Seminole State College’s Computer Science 
program. Please feel free to contact me at (518) 255-0280 or via e-mail at 
aleciasbailey@gmail.com.  

Sincerely, 

Alecia Bailey 



Alecia Bailey 
Milwaukee, WI | (518) 255-0280 | aleciasbailey@gmail.com | LinkedIn | GitHub 

Education 

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute; Troy, NY (Graduated: December 2023) 

MSc. in Information Technology; Concentration: Information Security GPA: 3.71 / 4.0 

University of Technology, Jamaica; Kingston, JA (Graduated: December 2021) 

BSc. in Computer Science GPA: 3.28 / 4.0 

Experience 

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute - Security researcher; Troy, NY January 2023 – December 2023 

● Executed incident response plans utilizing ISO 27001 standard, successfully slashing incident response time by 50%.

● Conducted in-depth risk assessments identifying vulnerabilities that resulted in a 40% decrease in cyberattacks.

● Conducted extensive research and analysis on cloud security trends, resulting in the implementation of new security

measures.

Envision by WorldStrides – Program Office Assistant; Multiple locations June 2023 – July 2023 

● Executed security measures to mitigate risks and ensure adherence to regulatory standards.

● Introduced automated monitoring tools resulting in a remarkable 40% decrease in system downtime and a 50%

improvement in response time.

● Guided K-12 students in game development via coding and operating an mBot robot using Python, for navigation,

illumination, and item retrieval tasks, leading to a 30% increase in interactive learning.

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute – Teaching Assistant; Troy, NY August 2022 – May 2023 

● Supported students in applying concepts related to network analysis, security protocols, and vulnerability assessments,

pertaining to IT infrastructure and security.

● Provided support for 70 IaaS machines allocated to students, overseeing their maintenance and serving as the initial point

of contact for fixing configurations.

● Assisted in the development of course materials for Web Systems and Web Science Development, focusing on up-to-date

industry practices and emerging threats.

eGOV Jamaica Limited - Operations Engineer; Kingston, JA March 2021 – May 2022 

● Worked closely with diverse teams, including stakeholders and product managers, to identify and solve complex technical

problems resulting in the resolution of over 3,000 issues and minimizing downtime by 50%.

● Implemented DevOps strategies, contributing to a significant improvement in the stability of production environments.

● Conducted extensive research on industry-standard DevOps practices and integrated them into project workflows.

Projects 

Cloud Security – Identity and Access Management Workshop; Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute  

● Topics explored: Access Control Models, Cloud Deployment Models, PoLP, MFA, SAML SSO, OpenID and others.

● Developed and facilitated an engaging two day workshop for the university community, showcasing IAM principles through

real-life case studies and interactive materials; educated over 100 participants, resulting in a 25% increase in IAM adoption

within the community.

Cryptography and Network Security – Client-Server ATM system; Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute 

● Encryption used: RSA, ElGamal, AES, SHA-1 Hashing, HMAC Algorithm and Pallier Cryptocounter.

● Implemented a comprehensive SSL protocol to establish secure communication between the bank and ATM system.

Active Directory and Security Event Monitoring Project; Personal project 

● Led a project to optimize the Active Directory setup for improved user management and security protocol alignment, to match

Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute organizational access control measures.

● Attempted to implement a security event monitoring system, enabling proactive detection and response to potential security

threats, to fortify the university's cyber defenses.

mailto:aleciasbailey@gmail.com
https://www.linkedin.com/in/alecia-bailey-37a2b3107/
https://github.com/Alecia-Bailey


 

Database Application and Systems – Language-Based Demographics Web Application; Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute  

● Solution: Developed a web application visualizing language-based demographics data from the US Census, focusing on 

socioeconomic factors using native language as a key metric. 

● Technologies Used: Utilized Cloud SQL database, HTML/CSS/JavaScript for frontend development, Looker Studio for 

interactive data analytics, and Google Form for user input. Integration of Cloud SQL with Google products facilitated data 

modeling and reporting. 

● Outcome: Provided a valuable tool for linguistic research, governmental planning, and public education on the socioeconomic 

distribution of immigrant families in the US. 

 

Capstone – “Cybersecurity for the Olympic Games” Deloitte Project; Rensselaer Polytechnic Institute  

● Led a diverse IT project with a strong emphasis on security protocols, showcasing expertise in managing and coordinating 

security-focused initiatives. 

● Conducted in-depth research for the MITRE ATT&CK Framework and evaluation of tactics, techniques and procedures of 

potential bad actors. 

● Leveraged strong project management skills to lead a team in a cross-functional project, ensuring timely delivery and 

adherence to educational standards. 

 

Skills 

IT Infrastructure & Support: Proficient in managing and troubleshooting IT infrastructure, including Active Directory and User 

Administration.  

 

Database Management: Skilled in SQL programming and database administration. Capable of developing complex queries, reports, 

and managing application-level security. 

 

Microsoft Ecosystem: Extensive experience in Microsoft 365 Administration, with a focus on Security Event Monitoring. 

 

Networking & Web Management: Competent in managing and troubleshooting Content Management Systems (CMS) with a focus 

on WordPress, domain name services, firewalls, and VPNs. 

 

Programming & DevOps: Proficient in Python, Bash, PowerShell, Linux scripting, C, Java, JavaScript, Node.js, React, Express, 

and Git. 

 

Project Management: Practiced in Agile methodologies; experienced in leading IT and security-related projects using tools like Jira 

and Trello. 

 

Cloud Technologies: Knowledgeable in cloud services such as: AWS Amplify, Microsoft Azure, Microsoft 365 Exchange Online, 

SharePoint, OneDrive, and Teams.  

 

Technical Tools: Skilled in Open-Source Intelligence tools (Shodan, Brandwatch, Liferaft, Skopenow, Flashpoint), Log Analysis 

(Splunk, Wireshark), Network Analysis (Nmap, tcpdump), and Steganography (Steghide, StegCracker). 

 

Certificate 

ISC2 Certified in Cybersecurity                                                            April 2023 

Pursuing CompTIA Security+                 Scheduled to take exam: March 2024 

 

Professional Development  

● Completed a professional workshop on 'MITRE ATT&CK Framework', conducted by the EC Council, focusing on deepening 

understanding of cyber threat models and enhancing cybersecurity practices. 

 

● Actively upskilling through TryHackMe, Cybrary, and TCM Security platforms, gaining practical skills in cybersecurity and 

information security, with a focus on real-world application and current industry standards. 

 

● Volunteered as a mentor for ‘Youth Can Do I.T’, a community initiative aimed at teaching basic programming skills to high 

school students from diverse socioeconomic backgrounds in Jamaica.  

 









































Ol{LA MA 
Tax Commis ic 

111l1l11•11•1••11111lllll11111111111111111111111•111l11•111111111 

DAVE HAYNIE LLC 

Date Issued: October 19, 2023 
Letter ID: L 1100519360 

Taxpayer ID: **-***9660 

PO BOX 178 
MCLOUD OK 74851-0178 

TRO 

Licenses/Permits at this Location 

SALES TAX PERMIT 

County POTTAWATOMIE COUNTY 

Holders of an Oklahoma Sales Tax Permit will find notice of penalties for violation of the Oklahoma Sales Tax 
code at tax.ok.gov 

If the sales tax permit at this location becomes invalid then all associated permits will become invalid. If the 
business changes location or ownership or is discontinued for any reason, this permit must be returned to the 
Oklahoma Tax Commission for cancellation WITH AN EXPLANATION ON THE REVERSE SIDE. 

Business Location 

DAVE HAYNIE 
35601 MOCCASIN TRAIL RD 
MCLOUD OK 74851-8277 

Industry Code 

423810 

City Code 

6388 

Site Effective 

May 1, 2020 

Sales Account ID 

STS-15450442-04 

Site Permit Number 

796041216 

Expires 

May 1, 2026 

PLEASE POST IN CONSPICUOUS PLACE 

Mark Wood, Chairman 
Shelly Paulk, Vice-Chairman 

Charles Prater, Secretary Member 

Non-Transferable 

al008 









































MASTER EQUITY LEASE AGREEMENT 

This Master Equity Lease Agreement is entered into this seventh day of March, 2017, by and between Enterprise FM Trust, a Delaware statutory 
trust ("Lessor"), and the lessee whose name and address is set forth on the signature page below ("Lessee"). 

1. LEASE OF VEHICLES: Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby leases from Lessor the vehicles (individually, a "Vehicle" and
collectively, the "Vehicles") described in the schedules from time to time delivered by Lessor to Lessee as set forth below ("Schedule(s)") for the rentals
and on the terms set forth in this Agreement and in the applicable Schedule. References to this "Agreement" shall include this Master Equity Lease
Agreement and the various Schedules and addenda to this Master Equity Lease Agreement. Lessor will, on or about the date of delivery of each
Vehicle to lessee, send Lessee a Schedule covering the Vehicle, which will include, among other things, a description of the Vehicle, the lease term and
the monthly rental and other payments due with respect to the Vehicle. The terms contained in each such Schedule will be binding on Lessee unless
Lessee objects in writing to such Schedule within ten (10) days after the date of delivery of the Vehicle covered by such Schedule. Lessor is the sole
legal owner of each Vehicle. This Agreement is a lease only and Lessee will have no right, title or interest in or to the Vehicles except for the use of the
Vehicles as described in this Agreement. This Agreement shall be treated as a true lease for federal and applicable state income tax purposes with
Lessor having all benefits of ownership of the Vehicles. It is understood and agreed that Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. or an affiliate thereof
(together with any subservicer, agent, successor or assign as servicer on behalf of Lessor, "Servicer") may administer this Agreement on behalf of
Lessor and may perform the service functions herein provided to be performed by Lessor.

2. TERM: The term of this Agreement ("Term") for each Vehicle begins on the date such Vehicle is delivered to Lessee (the "Delivery Date") and,
unless terminated earlier in accordance with the tenns of this Agreement, continues for the "Lease Term" as described in the applicable Schedule.

3. RENT AND OTHER CHARGES:
(a) Lessee agrees to pay Lessor monthly rental and other payments according to the Schedules and this Agreement. The monthly payments will

be in the amount listed as the "Total Monthly Rental Including Additional Services" on the applicable Schedule (with any portion of such amount 
identified as a charge for maintenance services under Section 4 of the applicable Schedule being payable to Lessor as agent for Enterprise Fleet 
Management, Inc.) and will be due and payable in advance on the first day of each month. If a Vehicle is delivered to Lessee on any day other than the 
first day of a month, monthly rental payments will begin on the first day of the next month. In addition to the monthly rental payments, Lessee agrees to 
pay Lessor a pro-rated rental charge for the number of days that the Delivery Date precedes the first monthly rental payment date. A portion of each 
monthly rental payment, being the amount designated as "Depreciation Reserve" on the applicable Schedule, will be considered as a reserve for 
depreciation and will be credited against the Delivered Price of the Vehicle for purposes of computing the Book Value of the Vehicle under Section 3(c). 
Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the "Total Initial Charges" set forth in each Schedule on the due date of the first monthly rental payment under such 
Schedule. Lessee agrees to pay Lessor the "Service Charge Due at Lease Termination" set forth in each Schedule at the end of the applicable Term 
(whether by reason of expiration, early termination or otherwise). 

(b) In the event the Term for any Vehicle ends prior to the last day of the scheduled Term, whether as a result of a default by Lessee, a Casualty
Occurrence or any other reason, the rentals and management fees paid by Lessee will be recalculated in accordance with the rule of 78's and the 
adjusted amount will be payable by Lessee to Lessor on the tennination date. 

(c) Lessee agrees to pay Lessor within thirty (30) days after the end of the Term for each Vehicle, additional rent equal to the excess, if any, of the
Book Value of such Vehicle over the greater of (i) the wholesale value of such Vehicle as detennined by Lessor in good faith or (ii) except as provided 
below, twenty percent (20%) of the Delivered Price of such Vehicle as set forth in the applicable Schedule. If the Book Value of such Vehicle is less than 
the greater of (i) the wholesale value of such Vehicle as detennined by Lessor in good faith or (ii) except as provided below, twenty percent (20%) of the 
Delivered Price of such Vehicle as set forth in the applicable Schedule, Lessor agrees to pay such deficiency to Lessee as a terminal rental adjustment 
within thirty (30) days after the end of the applicable Term. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (i) the Term for a Vehicle is greater than forty-eight (48) 
months (including any extension of the Tenn for such Vehicle), (ii) the mileage on a Vehicle at the end of the Tenn is greater than 15,000 miles per year 
on average (prorated on a daily basis) (i.e., if the mileage on a Vehicle with a Tenn of thirty-six (36) months is greater than 45,000 miles) or (iii) in the 
sole judgment of Lessor, a Vehicle has been subject to damage or any abnonnal or excessive wear and tear, the calculations described in the two 
immediately preceding sentences shall be made without giving effect to clause (ii) in each such sentence. The "Book Value" of a Vehicle means the sum 
of (i) the "Delivered Price• of the Vehicle as set forth in the applicable Schedule minus (ii) the total Depreciation Reserve paid by Lessee to Lessor with 
respect to such Vehicle R!Y§ (iii) all accrued and unpaid rent and/or other amounts owed by Lessee with respect to such Vehicle. 

(d) Any security deposit of Lessee will be returned to Lessee at the end of the applicable Term, except that the deposit will first be applied to any
losses and/or damages suffered by Lessor as a result of Lessee's breach of or default under this Agreement and/or to any other amounts then owed by 
Lessee to Lessor. 

(e) Any rental payment or other amount owed by Lessee to Lessor which is not paid within twenty (20) days after its due date will accrue interest,
payable on demand of Lessor, from the date due until paid in full at a rate per annum equal to the lesser of (i) Eighteen Percent (18%) per annum or (ii) 
the highest rate permitted by applicable law (the "Default Rate"). 

(f) If Lessee fails to pay any amount due under this Agreement or to comply with any of the covenants contained in this Agreement, lessor,
Servicer or any other agent of Lessor may, at its option, pay such amounts or perform such covenants and all sums paid or incurred by Lessor in 
connection therewith will be repayable by Lessee to Lessor upon demand together with interest thereon at the Default Rate. 

(g) Lessee's obligations to make all payments of rent and other amounts under this Agreement are absolute and unconditional and such payments
shall be made in immediately available funds without setoff, counterclaim or deduction of any kind. Lessee acknowledges and agrees that neither any 
Casualty Occurrence to any Vehicle nor any defect, unfitness or lack of governmental approval in, of, or with respect to, any Vehicle regardless of the 
cause or consequence nor any breach by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. of any maintenance agreement between Enterprise Fleet Management. 
Inc. and Lessee covering any Vehicle regardless of the cause or consequence will relieve Lessee from the perfonnance of any of its obligations under 
this Agreement, including, without limitation, the payment of rent and other amounts under this Agreement. 

4. USE AND SURRENDER OF VEHICLES: Lessee agrees to allow only duly authorized, licensed and insured drivers to use and operate the Vehicles.
Lessee agrees to comply with, and cause its drivers to comply with, all laws, statutes, rules, regulations and ordinances and the provisions of all
insurance policies affecting or covering the Vehicles or their use or operation. Lessee agrees to keep the Vehicles free of all liens, charges and
encumbrances. Lessee agrees that in no event will any Vehicle be used or operated for transporting hazardous substances or persons for hire, for any
illegal purpose or to pull trailers that exceed the manufacturer's trailer towing recommendations. Lessee agrees that no Vehicle is intended to be or will
be utilized as a "school bus" as defined in the Code of Federal Regulations or any applicable state or municipal statute or regulation. Lessee agrees not
to remove any Vehicle from the continental United States without first obtaining Lessor's written consent. At the expiration or earlier termination of this
Agreement with respect to each Vehicle, or upon demand by Lessor made pursuant to Section 14, Lessee at its risk and expense agrees to return such
Vehicle to Lessor at such place and by such reasonable means as may be designated by Lessor. If for any reason Lessee falls to return any Vehicle to
Lessor as and when required in accordance with this Section, Lessee agrees to pay Lessor additional rent for such Vehicle at twice the normal pro-rated
daily rent. Acceptance of such additional rent by Lessor will in no way limit Lessor's remedies with respect to Lessee's failure to return any Vehicle as
required hereunder.  

Initials: EFM ___ Cust._'1 __ _ 
Page I 



5. COSTS, EXPENSES, FEES AND CHARGES: Lessee agrees to pay all costs, expenses, fees, charges, fines, tickets, penalties and taxes (other
than federal and state income taxes on the income of Lessor) incurred in connection with the titling, registration, delivery, purchase, sale, rental, use or 
operation of the Vehicles during the Term. If Lessor, Servicer or any other agent of Lessor incurs any such costs or expenses, Lessee agrees to 
promptly reimburse Lessor for the same. 
6. LICENSE AND CHARGES: Each Vehicle will be titled and licensed in the name designated by Lessor at Lessee's expense. Certain other charges 
relating to the acquisition of each Vehicle and paid or satisfied by Lessor have been capitalized in determining the monthly rental, treated as an initial
charge or otherwise charged to Lessee. Such charges have been determined without reduction for trade-in, exchange allowance or other credit 
attributable to any Lessor-owned vehicle. 
7. REGISTRATION PLATES, ETC.: Lessee agrees, at its expense, to obtain in the name designated by Lessor all registration plates and other plates,
permits, inspections and/or licenses required in connection with the Vehicles, except for the initial registration plates which Lessor will obtain at Lessee's 
expense. The parties agree to cooperate and to furnish any and all information or documentation, which may be reasonably necessary for compliance 
with the provisions of this Section or any federal, state or local law, rule, regulation or ordinance. Lessee agrees that it will not permit any Vehicle to be 
located in a state other than the state in which such Vehicle is then titled for any continuous period of time that would require such Vehicle to become 
subject to the titling and/or registration laws of such other state. 
8. MAINTENANCE OF AND IMPROVEMENTS TO VEHICLES:

(a) Lessee agrees, at its expense, to (i) maintain the Vehicles in good condition, repair, maintenance and running order and in accordance with all
manufacturer's instructions and warranty requirements and all legal requirements and (ii) furnish all labor, materials, parts and other essentials required 
for the proper operation and maintenance of the Vehicles. Any alterations, additions, replacement parts or improvements to a Vehicle will become and 
remain the property of Lessor and will be returned with such Vehicle upon such Vehicle's return pursuant to Section 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, 
so long as no Event of Default has occurred and is continuing, Lessee shall have the right to remove any additional equipment installed by Lessee on a 
Vehicle prior to returning such Vehicle to Lessor under Section 4. The value of such alterations, additions, replacement parts and improvements will in 
no instance be regarded as rent. Without the prior written consent of Lessor, Lessee will not make any alterations, additions, replacement parts or 
improvements to any Vehicle which detract from its economic value or functional utility. Lessor will not be required to make any repairs or replacements 
of any nature or description with respect to any Vehicle, to maintain or repair any Vehicle or to make any expenditure whatsoever in connection with any 
Vehicle or this Agreement. 

(b) Lessor and Lessee acknowledge and agree that if Section 4 of a Schedule includes a charge for maintenance, (i) the Vehicle(s) covered by
such Schedule are subject to a separate maintenance agreement between Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. and Lessee and (ii) Lessor shall have no 
liability or responsibility for any failure of Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. to perform any of its obligations thereunder or to pay or reimburse Lessee 
for its payment of any costs and expenses incurred in connection with the maintenance or repair of any such Vehicle(s). 
9. SELECTION OF VEHICLES AND DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES:

(a) LESSEE ACCEPTANCE OF DELIVERY AND USE OF EACH VEHICLE WILL CONCLUSIVELY ESTABLISH THAT SUCH VEHICLE IS OF A
SIZE, DESIGN, CAPACITY, TYPE AND MANUFACTURE SELECTED BY LESSEE AND THAT SUCH VEHICLE IS IN GOOD CONDITION AND 
REPAIR AND IS SATISFACTORY IN ALL RESPECTS AND IS SUITABLE FOR LESSEE'S PURPOSE. LESSEE ACKNOWLEDGES THAT LESSOR 
IS NOT A MANUFACTURER OF ANY VEHICLE OR AN AGENT OF A MANUFACTURER OF ANY VEHICLE. 

(b) LESSOR MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO ANY VEHICLE,
INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO CONDITION, MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR ANY 
PARTICULAR PURPOSE, IT BEING AGREED THAT ALL SUCH RISKS ARE TO BE BORNE BY LESSEE. THE VEHICLES ARE LEASED "AS IS," 
"WITH ALL FAULTS." All warranties made by any supplier, vendor and/or manufacturer of a Vehicle are hereby assigned by Lessor to Lessee for the 
applicable Term and Lessee's only remedy, if any, is against the supplier, vendor or manufacturer of the Vehicle. 

(c) None of Lessor, Servicer or any other agent of Lessor will be liable to Lessee for any liability, claim, loss, damage (direct, incidental or
consequential) or expense of any kind or nature, caused directly or indirectly, by any Vehicle or any inadequacy of any Vehicle for any purpose or any 
defect (latent or patent) in any Vehicle or the use or maintenance of any Vehicle or any repair, servicing or adjustment of or to any Vehicle, or any delay 
in providing or failure to provide any Vehicle, or any interruption or loss of service or use of any Vehicle, or any loss of business or any damage 
whatsoever and however caused. In addition, none of Lessor, Servicer or any other agent of Lessor will have any liability to Lessee under this 
Agreement or under any order authorization form executed by Lessee if Lessor is unable to locate or purchase a Vehicle ordered by Lessee or for any 
delay in delivery of any Vehicle ordered by Lessee. 
1 0. RISK OF LOSS: Lessee assumes and agrees to bear the entire risk of loss of, theft of, damage to or destruction of any Vehicle from any cause 
whatsoever ("Casualty Occurrence"). In the event of a Casualty Occurrence to a Vehicle, Lessee shall give Lessor prompt notice of the Casualty 
Occurrence and thereafter will place the applicable Vehicle in good repair, condition and working order; provided, however, that if the applicable Vehicle 
is determined by Lessor to be lost, stolen, destroyed or damaged beyond repair (a "Totaled Vehicle"), Lessee agrees to pay Lessor no later than the 
date thirty (30) days after the date of the Casualty Occurrence the amounts owed under Sections 3(b) and 3(c) with respect to such Totaled Vehicle. 
Upon such payment, this Agreement will terminate with respect to such Totaled Vehicle. 
11. INSURANCE:

(a) Lessee agrees to purchase and maintain in force during the Term, insurance policies in at least the amounts listed below covering each
Vehicle, to be written by an insurance company or companies satisfactory to Lessor, insuring Lessee, Lessor and any other person or entity designated 
by Lessor against any damage, claim, suit, action or liability: 

(i) Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance (including Uninsured/Underinsured Motorist Coverage and No-Fault Protection where required
by law) for the limits listed below (Note - $2,000,000 Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage with No Deductible is required for 
each Vehicle capable of transporting more than 8 passengers): 

State of Vehicle Registration Coverage 

Connecticut, Massachusetts, Maine, New Hampshire, New 
Jersey, New York, Pennsylvania, Rhode Island, and Vermont 

Florida 

$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage - No Deductible 

$500,000 Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage or $100,000 Bodily Injury Per Person, $300,000 Per 
Occurrence and $50,000 Property Damage (100/300/50) - No 
Deductible 

All Other States $300,000 Combined Single Limit Bodily Injury and Property 
Damage or $100,000 Bodily Injury Per Person, $300,000 Per 
Occurrence and $50,000 Property Damage (100/300/50) - No 
Deductible 

(ii) Physical Damage Insurance (Collision & Comprehensive): Actual cash value of the applicable Vehicle. Maximum deductible of $500 per
occurrence - Collision and $250 per occurrence - 

Comprehensive). Initials: EFM ___ Cust  Page 2 



�f the requirements of any governmental or regulatory agency exceed the minimums stated in this Agreement, Lessee must obtain and maintain the higher 
insurance requirem�nts. Lessee agrees tha� �ach _ required policy of insurance will _by appropria_te endorsement or otherwise name Lessor and any other 
person or _entity des1gn�ted �Y Lessor as additional insureds and loss payees, as their respective interests may appear. Further, each such insurance policy
must provide �he foll_owing: (1) that the same may_ not be cancelle�. changed or modified until after the insurer has given to Lessor, Servicer and any other
person or entity designated by Lessor at least thirty (30) days prior written notice of such proposed cancellation, change or modification, (ii) that no act or 
default of Lessee or any other person or entity shall affect the right of Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor or any of their respective successors or 
assigns to recover under such policy or policies of insurance in the event of any loss of or damage to any Vehicle and (iii) that the coverage is "primary 
coverage" for the protection of Lessee, Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and their respective successors and assigns notwithstanding any other 
coverage carried by Lessee, Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor or any of their respective successors or assigns protecting against similar risks. 
Original certificates evidencing such coverage and naming Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and any other person or entity designated by Lessor 
as additional insureds and loss payees shall be furnished to Lessor prior to the Delivery Date, and annually thereafter and/or as reasonably requested by 
Lessor from time to time. In the event of default, Lessee hereby appoints Lessor, Servicer and any other agent of Lessor as Lessee's attorney-in-fact to 
receive payment of, to endorse all checks and other documents and to take any other actions necessary to pursue insurance claims and recover payments if 
Lessee fails to do so. Any expense of Lessor, Servicer or any other agent of Lessor in adjusting or collecting insurance shall be borne by Lessee. 
Lessee, its drivers, servants and agents agree to cooperate fully with Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and any insurance carriers in the 
investigation, defense and prosecution of all claims or suits arising from the use or operation of any Vehicle. If any claim is made or action commenced for 
death, personal injury or property damage resulting from the ownership, maintenance, use or operation of any Vehicle, Lessee will promptly notify Lessor of 
such action or claim and forward to Lessor a copy of every demand, notice, summons or other process received in connection with such claim or action. 

(b) Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 11 (a) above: (i) if Section 4 of a Schedule includes a charge for physical damage waiver, Lessor
agrees that (A) Lessee will not be required to obtain or maintain the minimum physical damage insurance (collision and comprehensive) required under 
Section 11 (a) for the Vehicle(s) covered by such Schedule and (B) Lessor will assume the risk of physical damage (collision and comprehensive) to the 
Vehicle(s} covered by such Schedule; provided, however, that such physical damage waiver shall not apply to, and Lessee shall be and remain liable 
and responsible for, damage to a covered Vehicle caused by wear and tear or mechanical breakdown or failure, damage to or loss of any parts, 
accessories or components added to a covered Vehicle by Lessee without the prior written consent of Lessor and/or damage to or loss of any property 
and/or personal effects contained in a covered Vehicle. In the event of a Casualty Occurrence to a covered Vehicle, Lessor may, at its option, replace, 
rather than repair, the damaged Vehicle with an equivalent vehicle, which replacement vehicle will then constitute the ''Vehicle" for purposes of this 
Agreement; and (ii) if Section 4 of a Schedule includes a charge for commercial automobile liability enrollment, Lessor agrees that it will, at its expense, 
obtain for and on behalf of Lessee, by adding Lessee as an additional insured under a commercial automobile liability insurance policy issued by an 
insurance company selected by Lessor, commercial automobile liability insurance satisfying the minimum commercial automobile liability insurance 
required under Section 11(a} for the Vehicle(s} covered by such Schedule. Lessor may at any time during the applicable Term terminate said obligation 
to provide physical damage waiver and/or commercial automobile liability enrollment and cancel such physical damage waiver and/or commercial 
automobile liability enrollment upon giving Lessee at least ten (10) days prior written notice. Upon such cancellation, insurance in the minimum amounts 
as set forth in 11 (a) shall be obtained and maintained by Lessee at Lessee's expense. An adjustment will be made in monthly rental charges payable by 
Lessee to reflect any such change and Lessee agrees to furnish Lessor with satisfactory proof of insurance coverage within ten (10) days after mailing of 
the notice. In addition, Lessor may change the rates charged by Lessor under this Section 11 (b} for physical damage waiver and/or commercial 
automobile liability enrollment upon giving Lessee at least thirty (30) days prior written notice. 
12. INDEMNITY: To the extent permitted by state law, Lessee agrees to defend and indemnify Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and their
respective successors and assigns from and against any and all losses, damages, liabilities, suits, claims, demands, costs and expenses (including, 
without limitation, reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses) which Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor or any of their respective successors or 
assigns may incur by reason of Lessee's breach or violation of, or failure to observe or perform, any term, provision or covenant of this Agreement, or as 
a result of any loss, damage, theft or destruction of any Vehicle or related to or arising out of or in connection with the use, operation or condition of any 
Vehicle. The provisions of this Section 12 shall survive any expiration or termination of this Agreement. Nothing herein shall be deemed to affect the 
rights, privileges, and immunities of Lessee and the foregoing indemnity provision is not intended to be a waiver of any sovereign immunity afforded to
Lessee pursuant to the law. 
13. INSPECTION OF VEHICLES; ODOMETER DISCLOSURE; FINANCIAL STATEMENTS: Lessee agrees to accomplish, at its expense, all
inspections of the Vehicles required by any governmental authority during the Term. Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and any of their 
respective successors or assigns will have the right to inspect any Vehicle at any reasonable time(s) during the Term and for this purpose to enter into or 
upon any building or place where any Vehicle is located. Lessee agrees to comply with all odometer disclosure laws, rules and regulations and to 
provide such written and signed disclosure information on such forms and in such manner as directed by Lessor. Providing false information or failure to 
complete the odometer disclosure form as required by law may result in fines and/or imprisonment. Lessee hereby agrees to promptly deliver to Lessor 
such financial statements and other financial information regarding Lessee as Lessor may from time to time reasonably request.
14. DEFAULT; REMEDIES: The following shall constitute events of default ("Events of Default") by Lessee under this Agreement: (a) if Lessee fails to
pay when due any rent or other amount due under this Agreement and any such failure shall remain unremedied for ten (10) days; (b) if Lessee fails to 
perform, keep or observe any term, provision or covenant contained in Section 11 of this Agreement; (c) if Lessee fails to perform, keep or observe any 
other term, provision or covenant contained in this Agreement and any such failure shall remain unremedied for thirty (30) days after written notice 
thereof is given by Lessor, Servicer or any other agent of Lessor to Lessee: (d) any seizure or confiscation of any Vehicle or any other act (other than a 
Casualty Occurrence) otherwise rendering any Vehicle unsuitable for use (as determined by Lessor); (e) if any present or future guaranty in favor of 
Lessor of all or any portion of the obligations of Lessee under this Agreement shall at any time for any reason cease to be in full force and effect or shall be 
declared to be null and void by a court of competent jurisdiction, or if the validity or enforceability of any such guaranty shall be contested or denied by any 
guarantor, or if any guarantor shall deny that it, he or she has any further liability or obligation under any such guaranty or if any guarantor shall fail to comply 
with or observe any of the terms, provisions or conditions contained in any such guaranty; (f) the occurrence of a material adverse change in the financial 
condition or business of Lessee or any guarantor; or (g) if Lessee or any guarantor is in default under or fails to comply with any other present or future 
agreement with or in favor of Lessor, The Crawford Group, Inc. or any direct or indirect subsidiary of The Crawford Group, Inc .. For purposes of this 
Section 14, the term "guarantor'' shall mean any present or future guarantor of all or any portion of the obligations of Lessee under this Agreement. 

Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, Lessor, without notice to Lessee, will have the right to exercise concurrently or separately (and without any 
election of remedies being deemed made), the following remedies: (a) Lessor may demand and receive immediate possession of any or all of the 
Vehicles from Lessee, without releasing Lessee from its obligations under this Agreement; if Lessee fails to surrender possession of the Vehicles to 
Lessor on default (or termination or expiration of the Term), Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and any of Lessor's independent contractors 
shall have the right to enter upon any premises where the Vehicles may be located and to remove and repossess the Vehicles; (b) Lessor may enforce 
performance by Lessee of its obligations under this Agreement; (c) Lessor may recover damages and expenses sustained by Lessor, Servicer, any 
other agent of Lessor or any of their respective successors or assigns by reason of Lessee's default including, to the extent permitted by applicable law, 
all costs and expenses, including court costs and reasonable attorneys' fees and expenses, incurred by Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor or 
any of their respective successors or assigns in attempting or effecting enforcement of Lessor's rights under this Agreement (whether or not litigation is 
commenced) and/or in connection with bankruptcy or insolvency proceedings; (d) upon written notice to Lessee, Lessor may terminate Lessee's rights 
Initials: EFM ___ Cust Page 3 



under this Agreement: (e) with respect to each Vehicle, Lessor may recover from Lessee all amounts owed by Lessee under Sections 3(b) and 3(c) of 
this Agreement (and, if Lessor does not recover possession of a Vehicle, (i) the estimated wholesale value of such Vehicle for purposes of Section 3(c) 
shall be deemed to be SO.OD and (ii) the calculations described in the first two sentences of Section 3(c) shall be made without giving effect to clause (ii) 
in each such sentence): and/or (f) Lessor may exercise any other right or remedy which may be available to Lessor under the Uniform Commercial 
Code, any other applicable law or in equity. A termination of this Agreement shall occur only upon written notice by Lessor to Lessee. Any termination 
shall not affect Lessee's obligation to pay all amounts due for periods prior to the effective date of such termination or Lessee's obligation to pay any 
indemnities under this Agreement. All remedies of Lessor under this Agreement or at law or in equity are cumulative. 

15. ASSIGNMENTS: Lessor may from time to time assign, pledge or transfer this Agreement and/or any or all of its rights and obligations under this 
Agreement to any person or entity. Lessee agrees, upon notice of any such assignment, pledge or transfer of any amounts due or to become due to 
Lessor under this Agreement to pay all such amounts to such assignee, pledgee or transferee. Any such assignee, pledgee or transferee of any rights 
or obligations of Lessor under this Agreement will have all of the rights and obligations that have been assigned to it. Lessee's rights and interest in and 
to the Vehicles are and will continue at all times to be subject and subordinate in all respects to any assignment, pledge or transfer now or hereafter 
executed by Lessor with or in favor of any such assignee, pledgee or transferee, provided that Lessee shall have the right of quiet enjoyment of the 
Vehicles so long as no Event of Default under this Agreement has occurred and is continuing. Lessee acknowledges and agrees that the rights of any 
assignee, pledgee or transferee in and to any amounts payable by the Lessee under any provisions of this Agreement shall be absolute and unconditional 
and shall not be subject to any abatement whatsoever, or to any defense, setoff, counterclaim or recoupment whatsoever, whether by reason of any damage 
to or loss or destruction of any Vehicle or by reason of any defect in or failure of title of the Lessor or interruption from whatsoever cause in the use, operation 
or possession of any Vehicle, or by reason of any indebtedness or liability howsoever and whenever arising of the Lessor or any of its affiliates to the Lessee 
or to any other person or entity, or for any other reason. 

Without the prior written consent of Lessor, Lessee may not assign, sublease, transfer or pledge this Agreement, any Vehicle, or any interest in this 
Agreement or in and to any Vehicle, or permit its rights under this Agreement or any Vehicle to be subject to any lien, charge or encumbrance. Lessee's 
interest in this Agreement is not assignable and cannot be assigned or transferred by operation of law. Lessee will not transfer or relinquish possession 
of any Vehicle (except for the sole purpose of repair or service of such Vehicle) without the prior written consent of Lessor. 

16. MISCELLANEOUS: This Agreement contains the entire understanding of the parties. This Agreement may only be amended or modified by an 
instrument in writing executed by both parties. Lessor shall not by any act, delay, omission or otherwise be deemed to have waived any of its rights or 
remedies under this Agreement and no waiver whatsoever shall be valid unless in writing and signed by Lessor and then only to the extent therein set 
forth. A waiver by Lessor of any right or remedy under this Agreement on any one occasion shall not be construed as a bar to any right or remedy, 
which Lessor would otherwise have on any future occasion. If any term or provision of this Agreement or any application of any such term or provision is 
invalid or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement and any other application of such term or provision will not be affected thereby. Giving of all 
notices under this Agreement will be sufficient if mailed by certified mail to a party at its address set forth below or at such other address as such party 
may provide in writing from time to time. Any such notice mailed to such address will be effective one (1) day after deposit in the United States mail, 
duly addressed, with certified mail, postage prepaid. Lessee will promptly notify Lessor of any change in Lessee's address. This Agreement may be
executed in multiple counterparts (including facsimile and pdf counterparts). but the counterpart marked "ORIGINAL" by Lessor will be the original lease
for purposes of applicable law. All of the representations, warranties, covenants, agreements and obligations of each Lessee under this Agreement (if 
more than one) are joint and several. 

17. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS; GOVERNING LAW: Subject to the provisions of Section 15, this Agreement will be binding upon Lessee and its 
heirs, executors, personal representatives, successors and assigns, and will inure to the benefit of Lessor, Servicer, any other agent of Lessor and their 
respective successors and assigns. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Missouri 
(determined without reference to conflict of law principles). 

18. NON-PETITION: Each party hereto hereby covenants and agrees that, prior to the date which is one year and one day after payment in full of all
indebtedness of Lessor, it shall not institute against, or join any other person in instituting against, Lessor any bankruptcy, reorganization, arrangement,
insolvency or liquidation proceedings or other similar proceeding under the laws of the United States or any state of the United States. The provisions of 
this Section 18 shall survive termination of this Master Equity Lease Agreement. 

19. NON-APPROPRIATION: Lessee's funding of this Agreement shall be on a Fiscal Year basis and is subject to annual appropriations. Lessor 
acknowledges that Lessee is a municipal corporation, is precluded by the County or State Constitution and other laws from entering into obligations that
financially bind future governing bodies, and that, therefore, nothing in this Agreement shall constitute an obligation of future legislative bodies of the
County or State to appropriate funds for purposes of this Agreement. Accordingly, the parties agree that the lease terms within this Agreement or any
Schedules relating hereto are contingent upon appropriation of funds. The parties further agree that should the County or State fail to appropriate such
funds, the Lessor shall be paid all rentals due and owing hereunder up until the actual day of termination. In addition, Lessor reserves the right to be
paid for any reasonable damages. These reasonable damages will be limited to the losses incurred by the Lessor for having to sell the vehicles on the
open used car market prior to the end of the scheduled term (as determined in Section 3 and Section 14 of this Agreement). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have duly executed this Master Equity Lease Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

LESSEE:  

By: 

Title: 

Address: 

Date Signed: 

 

Initials: HM. ___ Cust  

LESSOR: Enterprise FM Trust 

By: Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., its attorney in fact 

By: Jonathan Pearson 

Title: Director of Fleet Management 

Address: 3612 S Kelly Ave 

Edmond Ok 73013 

Date Signed 

Page 4 



SELF-INSURANCE ADDENDUM TO MASTER EQUITY LEASE AGREEMENT 
(Physical Damage and Liability) 

This Addendum is made to the Master Equity Lease Agreement dated the seventh day of March, 2017, as amended (the 
"Agreement"), by and between Enterprise FM Trust, a Delaware statutory trust ("Lessor"), and the lessee whose name is set fonh on the signature
I inc below (" Lessee"). 

This Addendum is attached to and made a pan of the Agreement (including each Schedule to the Agreement). All 
capital izcd tenns used and not otherwise defined herein shall have the respective meanings ascribed to them in the Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the provisions of Section 11 of the Agreement, Lessee shall be permitted to assume and self-insure the 
risks set fonh in Section 11 of the Agreement and shall not be required to purchase or maintain any insurance policy of any kind with respect to 
any Vehicle; provided however, that if any Federal, state, local or other law, statute, rule, regulation or ordinance requires Lessee to maintain any 
amount of insurance with respect to any Vehicle, Lessee shall purchase and maintain such amount of Insurance in the form of an insurance policy 
which complies in all respects, other than the amount of insurance required, with Section 11 of the Agreement. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing, if (I) Lessor, at any time in its good faith judgment, is not satisfied with the condition, 
prospects or performances, financial or otherwise, of Lessee or (2) any default or event of default occurs under the Agreement, than Lessor may, 
at its option, revoke this Addendum and terminate Lessee's right to self-insure by providing Lessee with at least thiny (30) days prior written
notice thereof. Upon the termination of Lessee's right to self-insure, Lessee shall comply in all respects with Section 11 of the Agreement. 

Except as amended hereby, all the terms and provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. In the event 
of any connict between this Addendum and the Agreement or any of the Schedules, the terms and provisions of this Addendum will govern and 
control. 

LESSEE: 

By
Title: 

: 

Date Signed:

Initials: EFM ____ Cust   Page I

LESSOR: Enterprise FM Trust 
By: Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., its attorney in fact 

By: Jonathan Pearson 
Title: Director of Fleet Management 

Date Signed: __________ , __ _ 



MAINTENANCE MANAGEMENT AND FLEET RENTAL AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is entered into as of the seventh day of March, 2017, by and between Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc .. a Missouri corporation, 
doing business as "Enterprise Fleet Management" ("EFM"), and Southeastern Oklahoma State University (the "Company"). 

WITNESS ETH: 

1. ENTERPRISE CARDS: Upon request from the Company, EFM will provide a driver information packet outlining its vehicle
maintenance program (the "Program") and a card ("Card") for each Company vehicle included in the Company's request. All
drivers of vehicles subject to this Agreement must be a representative of the Company, its subsidiaries or affiliates. All Cards
issued by EFM upon request of the Company shall be subject to the terms of this Agreement and the responsibility of the
Company. All Cards shall bear an expiration date.

Cards issued to the Company shall be used by the Company in accordance with this Agreement and limited solely to purchases of
certain products and services for Company vehicles, which are included in the Program. The Program is subject to all other EFM
instructions, rules and regulations which may be revised from time to time by EFM. Cards shall remain the property of EFM and
returned to EFM upon expiration or cancellation.

2. VEHICLE REPAIRS AND SERVICE: EFM will provide purchase order control by phone or in writing authorizing charges
for repairs and service over $75, or such other amount as may be established by EFM from time to time under the Program. All
charges for repairs and services will be invoiced to EFM. Invoices will be reviewed by EFM for accuracy, proper application of
potential manufacturer's warranties, application of potential discounts and unnecessary, unauthorized repairs.

Notwithstanding the above, in the event the repairs and service are the result of damage from an accident or other non
maintenance related cause (including glass claims), these matters will be referred to the Company's Fleet Manager. If the
Company prefers that EFM handle the damage repair, the Company agrees to assign the administration of the matter to EFM.
EFM will administer such claims in its discretion. The fees for this service will be up to $125.00 per claim and the Company
agrees to reimburse for repairs as outlined in this agreement. If the Company desires the assistance of EFM in recovering damage
amounts from at fault third parties, a Vehicle Risk Management Agreement must be on file for the Company.

3. BILLING AND PAYMENT: All audited invoices paid by EFM on behalf of the Company will be consolidated and submitted
to the Company on a single monthly invoice for the entire Company fleet covered under this Agreement. The Company is liable
for, and will pay EFM within ten ( 10) days after receipt of an invoice or statement for, all purchases invoiced to the Company by
EFM, which were paid by EFM for or on behalf of the Company. EFM will be entitled to retain for its own account, and treat as
being paid by EFM for purposes of this Agreement, any discounts it receives from a supplier with respect to such purchases
which are based on the overall volume of business EFM provides to such supplier and not solely the Company's business. EFM
will exercise due care to prevent additional charges from being incurred once the Company has notified EFM of its desire to
cancel any outstanding Card under this Agreement. The Company will use its best efforts to obtain and return any such cancelled
Card.

4. RENT AL VEHICLES: The Card will authorize the Company's representative to arrange for rental vehicles with a subsidiary of
Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company for a maximum of two (2) days without prior authorization. Extensions beyond two (2) days
must be granted by an EFM representative. The Company assumes all responsibility for all rental agreements arranged by EFM
with a subsidiary of Enterprise Rent-A-Car Company through an EFM representative or through the use of the Card. All drivers
must be at least 21 years of age, hold a valid driver's license, be an employee of the Company or authorized by the Company
through established reservation procedures and meet other applicable requirements of the applicable subsidiary of Enterprise
Rent-A-Car Company.

5. NO WARRANTY: EFM MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
WITH RESPECT TO PRODUCTS, REPAIRS OR SERVICES PROVIDED FOR UNDER THIS AGREEMENT BY THIRD
PARTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO
MERCHANT ABILITY, COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS, OPERATION, CONDITION, SUIT ABILITY,
PERFORMANCE, QUALITY OR FITNESS FOR USE. Any defect in the performance of any product, repair or service will not
relieve the Company from its obligations under this Agreement, including without limitation the payment to EFM of monthly
invoices.

6. CANCELLATION: Either party may cancel any Card under this Agreement or this Agreement in its entirety at any time by
giving written notice to the other party. The cancellation of any Card or termination of this Agreement will not affect any rights
or obligations under this Agreement, which shall have previously accrued or shall thereafter arise with respect to any occurrence
prior to such cancellatton ,or termination. A Card shall be immediately returned to EFM upon cancellation to: Enterprise Fleet

Initials: EFM ___ Cust Page I 



Management, 600 Corporate Park Drive, St. Louis, MO 63105, Attention: Enterprise Card Department. Notice to EFM regarding 
the cancellation of any Card shall specify the Card number and identify the Company's representative. In the case of a terminated 
representative, such notice shall include a brief description of the efforts made to reclaim the Card. 

7. NOTICES: All notices of cancellation or termination under this Agreement shall be mailed postage prepaid by registered or 
certified mail, or sent by express overnight delivery service, to the other party at its address set forth on the signature page of this 
Agreement or at such other address as such party may provide in writing from time to time. Any such notice sent by mail will be 
effective three (3) days after deposit in the United States mail, duly addressed, with registered or certified mail postage prepaid. 
Any such notice sent by express overnight delivery service will be effective one (I) day after deposit with such delivery service, 
duly addressed, with delivery fees prepaid. The Company will promptly notify EFM of any change in the Company's address.

8. FEES: EFM will charge the Company for the service under this Agreement $5.00 per month per Card, plus a one time set-up fee 
of$0.00.

9. MISCELLANEOUS: This Agreement may be amended only by an agreement in writing signed by EFM and the Company. 
This Agreement is governed by the substantive laws of the State of Oklahoma (determined without reference to conflict of 
law principles).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, EFM and the Company have executed this Maintenance Management and Fleet Rental Agreement as of the day and 
year first above written. 

Company:  

By: 
Title: 

Address: 

- 

 

e-___,_

Initials: EFM Cust� \.J 
---

EFM: 

By: 
Title: 

Address: 

Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. 

Jonathan Pearson 
Director of Fleet Management 

3612 S Kelly Ave 
Edmond Ok 73013 

Date Signed: __________ � 

Page 2 

Date Signed: __________ � 



MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT 

This Maintenance Agreement (this "Agreement") is made and entered into this seventh day of March, 2017, by Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., 
a Missouri corporation ("EFM"), and Southeastern Oklahoma State University ("Lessee"). 

WITNESS ETH 

1. LEASE. Reference is hereby made to that certain Master Equity Lease Agreement dated as of the seventh day of March, 2017, by and between 
Enterprise FM Trust, a Delaware statutory trust, as lessor ("Lessor"), and Lessee, as lessee (as the same may from time to time be amended, modified, 
extended, renewed, supplemented or restated, the "Lease"). All capitalized terms used and not otherwise defined in this Agreement shall have the
respective meanings ascribed to them in the Lease.

2. COVERED VEHICLES. This Agreement shall only apply to those vehicles leased by Lessor to Lessee pursuant to the Lease to the extent Section 4
of the Schedule for such vehicle includes a charge for maintenance (the "Covered Vehicle(s)").

3. TERM AND TERMINATION. The term of this Agreement ("Term") for each Covered Vehicle shall begin on the Delivery Date of such Covered
Vehicle and shall continue until the last day of the "Term" (as defined in the Lease) for such Covered Vehicle unless earlier terminated as set forth
below. Each of EFM and Lessee shall each have the right to terminate this Agreement effective as of the last day of any calendar month with respect to 
any or all of the Covered Vehicles upon not less than sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other party. The termination of this Agreement with 
respect to any or all of the Covered Vehicles shall not affect any rights or obligations under this Agreement which shall have previously accrued or shall 
thereafter arise with respect to any occurrence prior to termination, and such rights and obligations shall continue to be governed by the terms of this 
Agreement.

4. VEHICLE REPAIRS AND SERVICE. EFM agrees that, during the Term for the applicable Covered Vehicle and subject to the terms and conditions
of this Agreement, it will pay for, or reimburse Lessee for its payment of, all costs and expenses incurred in connection with the maintenance or repair of
a Covered Vehicle. This Agreement does not cover, and Lessee will remain responsible for and pay for, (a) fuel, (b) oil and other fluids between
changes, (c) tire repair and replacement, (d) washing, (e) repair of damage due to lack of maintenance by Lessee between scheduled services
(including, without limitation, failure to maintain fluid levels), (f) maintenance or repair of any alterations to a Covered Vehicle or of any after-market
components (this Agreement covers maintenance and repair only of the Covered Vehicles themselves and any factory-installed components and does
not cover maintenance or repair of chassis alterations, add-on bodies (including, without limitation, step vans) or other equipment (including, without
limitation, lift gates and PTO controls) which is installed or modified by a dealer, body shop, upfitter or anyone else other than the manufacturer of the
Covered Vehicle, (g) any service and/or damage resulting from, related to or arising out of an accident, a collision, theft, fire, freezing, vandalism, riot,
explosion, other Acts of God, an object striking the Covered Vehicle, improper use of the Covered Vehicle (including, without limitation, driving over
curbs, overloading, racing or other competition) or Lessee's failure to maintain the Covered Vehicle as required by the Lease, (h) roadside assistance or
towing for vehicle maintenance purposes, (i) mobile services, 0) the cost of loaner or rental vehicles or (k) if the Covered Vehicle is a truck, (i) manual
transmission clutch adjustment or replacement, (ii) brake adjustment or replacement or (iii) front axle alignment. Whenever it is necessary to have a
Covered Vehicle serviced, Lessee agrees to have the necessary work performed by an authorized dealer of such Covered Vehicle or by a service facility
acceptable to EFM. In every case, if the cost of such service will exceed $50.00, Lessee must notify EFM and obtain EFM's authorization for such
service and EFM's instructions as to where such service shall be made and the extent of service to be obtained. Lessee agrees to furnish an invoice for
all service to a Covered Vehicle, accompanied by a copy of the shop or service order (odometer mileage must be shown on each shop or service order).
EFM will not be obligated to pay for any unauthorized charges or those exceeding $50.00 for one service on any Covered Vehicle unless Lessee has 
complied with the above terms and conditions. EFM will not have any responsibility to pay for any services in excess of the services recommended by
the manufacturer, unless otherwise agreed to by EFM. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Agreement to the contrary, (a) all service performed
within one hundred twenty (120) days prior to the last day of the scheduled ''Term" (as defined in the Lease) for the applicable Covered Vehicle must be 
authorized by and have the prior consent and approval of EFM and any service not so authorized will be the responsibility of and be paid for by Lessee
and (b) EFM is not required to provide or pay for any service to any Covered Vehicle after 100,000 miles. 

5. ENTERPRISE CARDS: EFM may, at its option, provide Lessee with an authorization card (the "EFM Card") for use in authorizing the payment of
charges incurred in connection with the maintenance of the Covered Vehicles. Lessee agrees to be liable to EFM for, and upon receipt of a monthly or
other statement from EFM, Lessee agrees to promptly pay to EFM, all charges made by or for the account of Lessee with the EFM Card (other than any
charges which are the responsibility of EFM under the terms of this Agreement). EFM reserves the right to change the terms and conditions for the use 
of the EFM Card at any time. The EFM Card remains the property of EFM and EFM may revoke Lessee's right to possess or use the EFM Card at any 
time. Upon the termination of this Agreement or upon the demand of EFM, Lessee must return the EFM Card to EFM. The EFM Card is non
transferable.

6. PAYMENT TERMS. The amount of the monthly maintenance fee will be listed on the applicable Schedule and will be due and payable in advance on
the first day of each month. If the first day of the Term for a Covered Vehicle is other than the first day of a calendar month, Lessee will pay EFM, on the
first day of the Term for such Covered Vehicle, a pro-rated maintenance fee for the number of days that the Delivery Date precedes the first monthly
maintenance fee payment date. Any monthly maintenance fee or other amount owed by Lessee to EFM under this Agreement which is not paid within
twenty (20) days after its due date will accrue interest, payable upon demand of EFM, from the date due until paid in full at a rate per annum equal to the
lesser of (i) Eighteen Percent (18%) per annum or (ii) the highest rate allowed by applicable law. The monthly maintenance fee set forth on each
applicable Schedule allows the number of miles per month as set forth in such Schedule. Lessee agrees to pay EFM at the end of the applicable Term
(whether by reason of termination of this Agreement or otherwise) an overmileage maintenance fee for any miles in excess of this average amount per
month at the rate set forth in the applicable Schedule. EFM may, at its option, permit Lessor, as an agent for EFM, to bill and collect amounts due to
EFM under this Agreement from Lessee on behalf of EFM.

7. NO WARRANTIES. Lessee acknowledges that EFM does not perform maintenance or repair services on the Covered Vehicles but rather EFM
arranges for maintenance and/or repair services on the Covered Vehicles to be performed by third parties. EFM MAKES NO REPRESENTATION OR 
WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, WITH RESPECT TO ANY PRODUCTS, REPAIRS OR SERVICES PROVIDED FOR UNDER
THIS AGREEMENT BY THIRD PARTIES, INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY REPRESENTATION OR WARRANTY AS TO 
MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE, COMPLIANCE WITH SPECIFICATIONS, OPERATION, CONDITION, SUITABILITY,
PERFORMANCE OR QUALITY. ANY DEFECT IN THE PERFORMANCE OF ANY PRODUCT, REPAIR OR SERVICE WILL NOT RELIEVE LESSEE
OF ITS OBLIGATIONS UNDER THIS AGREEMENT, INCLUDING THE PAYMENT TO EFM OF THE MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FEES AND OTHER
CHARGES DUE UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.

Initials: EFM Cust 
---

Page 1 



8. LESSOR NOT A PARTY. Lessor is not a party to, and shall have no rights, obligations or duties under or in respect of, this Agreement. 

9. NOTICES. Any notice or other communication under this Agreement shall be in writing and delivered in person or sent by facsimile, recognized 
overnight courier or registered or certified mail, return receipt requested and postage prepaid, to the applicable party at its address or facsimile number 
set forth on the signature page of this Agreement, or at such other address or facsimile number as any party hereto may designate as its address or 
facsimile number for communications under this Agreement by notice so given. Such notices shall be deemed effective on the day on which delivered or 
sent if delivered in person or sent by facsimile, on the first (1st) business day after the day on which sent, if sent by recognized overnight courier or on 
the third (3rd) business day after the day on which mailed, if sent by registered or certified mail.

10. MISCELLANEOUS. This Agreement embodies the entire Agreement between the parties relating to the subject matter hereof. This Agreement may be
amended only by an agreement in writing signed by EFM and Lessee. Any provision of this Agreement which is prohibited or unenforceable in any 
jurisdiction shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective only to the extent of such prohibition or unenforceability without invalidating the remaining provisions of 
this Agreement or affecting the validity or enforceability of such provisions in any other jurisdiction. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the 
benefit of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns, except that Lessee may not assign, transfer or delegate any of its rights or 
obligations under this Agreement without the prior written consent of EFM. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the
substantive laws of the State of Missouri (without reference to conflict of law principles). 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, EFM and Lessee have executed this Maintenance Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 

LESSEE: 

 

By: 

Title: 

Address: 

Attention: 

Facsimile No.: 

Date Signed: 

 

Initials: EFM Cust 
 

---

EFM: Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc. 

By: 

Title: 

Address: 

Attention: 

Jonathan Pearson 

Director of Fleet Management 

3612 S Kelly Ave 

Edmond Ok 73013 

Facsimile No.: 

Date Signed 

Page 2 



AMENDMENT TO MASTER EQUITY LEASE AGREEMENT 

THIS AMENDMENT ("Amendment") dated this day of ,J , 2017 is attached to, and made a part of, the 
MASTER EQUITY LEASE AGREEMENT entered into on the day of July, 2017 ("Agreement") by and between 
Enterprise FM Trust, a Delaware statutory trust ("Lessor") and  ("Lessee"). This Amendment is made for 
good and valuable consideration, the receipt of which is hereby acknowledged by the parties. 

Section 3(e) of the Master Equity Lease Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

Any rental payment or other amount owed by Lessee to Lessor which is not paid within twemy-thirty (:W30) days 
after its due date will amue interest, payaole--en demand of Lessor, from the date due until paid in full at a rate per 
aAAum equal to the lesser of (i) Eighteen PeFBent (18%) per annum or (ii) the highest rate permitted by applicable 
law (the "Default Rate")be considered in default and the Default; Remedies provision of Section 14 will apply. 

Section 14(a) first paragraph of the Master Equity Lease Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

if Lessee fails to pay when due any rent or other amount due under this Agreement and any such failure shall remain 
unremedied for tefi--twenty (40� days after written notice thereof is given by Lessor, Servicer or any other agent of 
Lessor to Lessee; 

Section 17 of the Master Equity Lease Agreement is amended to read as follows: 

Subject to the provisions of Section 15, this Agreement will be binding upon Lessee and its heirs, executors, 
personal representatives, successors and assigns, and will inure to the benefit of Lessor, Servicer, any other agent 
of Lessor and their respective successors and assigns. This Agreement will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the substantive laws of the State of Mi6soofi...Oklahoma (determined without reference to conflict of 
law principles). Venue for any disputes or claims arising under this Agreement shall be within the courts of 
Oklahoma County District Court, Oklahoma. 

All references in the Agreement and in the various Schedules and addenda to the Agreement and any other 
references of similar import shall henceforth mean the Agreement as amended by this Amendment. Except to the 
extent specifically amended by this Amendment, all of the terms, provisions, conditions, covenants, representations 
and warranties contained in the Agreement shall be and remain in full force and effect and the same are hereby 
ratified and confirmed. 

IN WITNES$':)HEREOF, Lessor and Lessee have executed this Amendment to Master Equity Lease 
Agreement as of the \ day of July, 2017. 

(Lessee) 

By

Title: 

Enterprise FM Trust (Lessor) 
By: Enterprise Fleet Management, Inc., its attorney in fact 

By _________________ _

Title: ________________ _ 



EMERITUS STATUS REQUEST
SSC Policy on Emeritus status states that the Seminole State College Board of Regents, at its 
discretion, may honor recommendations of the President granting retired faculty, administra-
tors, or professional staff members emeritus status after retirement.  In evaluating candidates 
for this honorary status, consideration may be given to length of service, special recognitions 

and activities, and similar items related to performance.

DR. LINDA GOELLER
FORMER VICE PRESIDENT 
FOR ACADEMIC AFFAIRS

     Dr. Goeller worked at SSC for 12 years. Prior 
to serving as Vice President for Academic Affairs, 
she was a Professor of Mathematics, the Assess-
ment Coordinator and chaired the STEM Divi-
sion. 
     She earned her Ph.D. in Professional Studies/
Mathematics Education from Oklahoma State 
University, her M.Ed. in Mathematics Education 
from Northeastern State University, and her B.S. 
in Accounting from Oklahoma State University.
     For three years, she served on the Oklahoma 
State Regents for Higher Education Council 
on Instruction. On the Oklahoma Council of 
Teachers of Mathematics Board, she represents 
community colleges. She served on a number of 
committees on the SSC campus, including the 
Mathematics Division Degree Program Evalu-
ation committee, Student Success Committee, 
and she chaired the Assessment of Student Learn-
ing Committee from 2014-2021.
     She also received the Dale P. Parnell Distin-
guished Faculty Award at the 2019 American 
Association of Community Colleges annual con-
vention in Orlando, Florida. The award is given 
to outstanding instructors who demonstrate a 
passion for classroom learning, show a willing-
ness to support students both inside and outside 
of the classroom, and go above and beyond what 
is required to ensure the academic success of their 
students.



POLICY NUMBER II-4-1 
 

GENERAL POLICIES REGARDING COLLEGE PERSONNEL 
 

 

The President of the College as Chief Executive Officer is hereby delegated authority by the 

Board of Regents for all employment decisions (excluding Vice Presidential positions) regarding 

hiring, assignment of personnel, promotion, designation of duties and job descriptions, 

discipline, termination, or any other personnel actions.  For any position with the title of Vice 

President, Board approval is required prior to hiring or termination. 

 

Seminole State College contracts with regular full-time professional staff and faculty on an 

annual basis.  Except as provided in this policy for tenured faculty, contracting with an employee 

for one year does not imply that the employee will be contracted for any other time period.  Non-

contracted employees, including part-time and classified employees, are employed as needed at 

the will of the President.  Nothing in this policy shall preclude employees from exercising their 

due process rights as outlined in the Policy manual.  

 

NON-DISCRIMINATION POLICY 

 

Seminole State College does not discriminate or permit discrimination by any member of its 

community against any individual based on the individual’s race, color, religion, political beliefs, 

national origin, age (40 or older), sex, sexual orientation, genetic information, gender identity, 

gender expression, disability, or veteran status in matters of admissions, employment, financial 

aid, housing, services in educational programs or activities.  

 

In compliance with and support of the following federal civil right laws:  

 

 Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, 

or national origin (including language).  

 Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, which prohibits discrimination based on 

disability.  

 Title IX of the Education Amendments Act of 1972, which prohibits discrimination based on 

sex in education programs or activities.  

 Age Discrimination Act of 1975, which prohibits discrimination based on age.  

 U.S. Department of Homeland Security regulation 6 C.F.R. Part 19, which prohibits 

discrimination based on religion in social service programs.  

 
College policy prohibits retaliation against a person for filing a complaint of discrimination or 

harassment under this policy or other applicable federal, state, or local laws. This policy also 

prohibits retaliation against any person who assists someone with a complaint of discrimination 

or harassment or who participates in any manner in an investigation or resolution of a complaint 

of discrimination or harassment. 

 

PRESIDENTIAL SEARCH AND SELECTION 

 

In the event of an opening in the position of President, the Chair of the Seminole State College 

Board of Regents has the responsibility and authority to oversee the presidential selection 

process.  The Office of the President, in collaboration with the Faculty Senate Subcommittee on 



Academic Issues, has developed a search and selection process, which may be utilized at the 

discretion of the Board.  The Board may utilize other methods for recruitment and selection of a 

President. 

 

EMPLOYMENT QUALIFICATIONS 

 

Candidates for a teaching position in an academic, transfer-oriented, program should possess an 

appropriate academic degree from an acceptable training institution with prior teaching 

experience highly desirable.  Typically a master’s degree is required for a full-time teaching 

position in a traditional academic area.  A doctoral degree is highly desirable. 

 

In order to be employed in a teaching position in the occupational/technical areas, successful 

candidates must have proven capabilities in the field in which they propose to teach.  Some 

college training, technical certification, and prior teaching experience are desirable. 

 

Candidates for the various administrative positions must have a minimum of a master’s degree or 

possess specialized training and experience.  Experience in teaching or administration is required 

in the positions of Vice President for Academic Affairs, the Vice President for Student Services 

and deans.  It is highly desirable that the candidate holds or be making progress toward a 

doctoral degree. 

Candidates for other positions on campus should have good character, adequate skills for the 

tasks required and appropriate training and/or experience. 

 

APPOINTMENT OF PERSONNEL 

Initial Appointment 

 

Full-Time Faculty, Administrative, and Program Employees  

The President, upon recommendation from appropriate administrative personnel, makes initial 

appointment of regular, full-time faculty, administrative and professional staff. The President is 

also authorized to make temporary appointments as necessary.  

 

Upon employment, the employee must file with the College: 1) a complete résumé which 

identifies all previous employment; 2) official transcripts of all college work and/or appropriate 

certificates; and 3) all other applicable federal and state employment forms.  

 

Responsibilities 

 

Each employee is expected to be knowledgeable of performance criteria for his/her particular 

position and with all rules, procedures, policies, and standards of conduct established.  An 

employee who does not fulfill the responsibilities set out by such may be subject to corrective or 

disciplinary action. 

 

New Employment Probationary Period 

 

Newly hired employees who are not full-time faculty shall be placed in a six-month probationary 

period. Newly hired faculty shall be placed in a probationary period matching the length of their 

initial contract.  The probationary period can be extended if warranted on the recommendation of 

their supervisor(s) and the approval of the President.  If an employee persists in poor 

performance, a supervisor may recommend termination.  

 



During the probationary period, employees serve at the will of the president and are subject to 

dismissal with or without cause at any time without prior notice. Recommendations for 

dismissals shall be recommended to the President for approval. 

 

Upon promotion to a new classification, transfer, or demotion, employees may be placed in a six-

month probationary period to allow the department supervisor a sufficient amount of time to 

measure the efficiency and productivity of the employee.  Such probationary periods do not 

affect an employee’s eligibility for accrual or use of College benefits. 

  

Contract Renewals 

 

The renewal of the President’s contract will be considered at or before the January Board 

Meeting as appropriate, or as specified in the contract between Seminole State College and the 

President.  

 

Tenure is considered a state of continuing employment.  Tenured faculty members are protected 

from dismissal except for sufficient cause, for reasons of financial exigency, or change in 

institutional programs. Unless there is a change in institutional programming or a declaration of 

financial exigency by the Board of Regents of Seminole State College, contracts for tenured 

faculty shall be automatically renewed without written notification.   

 

  Any non-tenured faculty and professional staff members who the College does not intend to 

offer a contract for the coming year will receive notification by April 15th.  For employees who 

will be rehired, salaries, benefits and other conditions of employment may be established by the 

President at a later time, prior to the issuance of contracts, which shall be automatically renewed 

without written notification.  Classified employees are “at will” and serve at the pleasure of the 

president subject to dismissal with or without cause at any time.  Classified staff shall receive 

notification of the conditions of their employment at the beginning of each fiscal year.  

 

Authorization of Emeritus Status  

 

The Seminole State College Board of Regents, at its discretion, may honor recommendations of 

the President granting retired faculty, administrators, or professional staff members emeritus 

status after retirement. In evaluating candidates for this honorary status, consideration may be 

given to length of service, special recognitions and activities, and similar items related to 

performance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

DATE OF ADOPTION: December 14, 2006 LEGAL REFERENCE: 

REVISION DATE(S): October 27, 2011; October 25, 2012; March 26, 2015; January 18, 

2018; August 15, 2019; January 21, 2020 

 

RELATED ADMINISTRATIVE RULES AND REGULATIONS:  

    

    

 







March 14, 2024 

 

State Regents’ Policy 3.18 

 OKLAHOMA STATE REGENTS FOR HIGHER EDUCATION 

Return by December 1, 2023 

Electronic submission with President’s signature is preferred (to sbeauchamp@osrhe.edu). 

 

Institution: Seminole State College 

 

ACADEMIC CALENDAR FOR 2024-2025 
 

NOTE:  All schedules should include final exams 

 

 
Summer 2024 Session: 

 

Semester (14-week session) (begins and ends) 5/6/2024 through 8/9/2024 

10-week session (begins and ends)  5/20/2024 through 7/25/2024 

1st 5-week session (begins and ends) 5/20/2024 through 6/20/2024 

2nd 5-week session (begins and ends) 6/24/2024 through 7/25/2024 

6-week session (begins and ends)  5/13/2024 through 6/20/2024 

1-week session (begins and ends)  6/24/2024 through 6/27/2024 

8 -week session (begins and ends) 5/20/2024 through 7/11/2024 

 

Please list dates of all holidays/breaks (no classes)   

Memorial Day 5/27/2024 through 5/27/2024 

Juneteenth 6/19/2024 through 6/19/2024 

Fourth of July 7/4/2024 through 7/4/2024 

 

Semester ends 5/6/2024 through 8/9/2024 

 

 

Please add any additional short-term sessions offered at your institution: 

(Please note the specific length of the short-term session in the shaded boxes) 

4-week session (begins and ends) UB 6/3/2024 through 6/27/2024 

 

 

Summer Commencement date (if applicable) Click here to enter a date. 

 

  

mailto:sbeauchamp@osrhe.edu


Academic Calendar 2024-2025 

Page 2 

 

State Regents’ Policy 3.18 

 

 

 

Fall 2024 Semester: 

 

16-week Semester (begins and ends)  8/19/2024 through 12/14/2024 

12-week Semester (begins and ends)  8/19/2024 through 11/8/2024 

   1st 8-week session (begins and ends)  8/19/2024 through 10/11/2024 

2nd 8-week session (begins and ends)  10/14/2024 through 12/14/2024 

4 week session (begins and ends)  11/11/2024 through 12/14/2024 

 

 

Please add any additional short-term sessions offered at your institution (if applicable): 

(Please note the specific length of the short-term session in the shaded boxes) 

  

Please list dates of all holidays/breaks (no classes)  

Labor Day 9/2/2024 through 9/2/2024 

Fall Break 10/17/2024 through 10/18/2024 

Thanksgiving 11/27/2024 through 11/29/2024 

 

Semester ends 8/19/2024 through 12/14/2024 

 

Fall Commencement date (if applicable) Click here to enter a date. 

 

  



Academic Calendar 2024-2025 

Page 3 

 

State Regents’ Policy 3.18 

 

 

Spring 2025 Semester: 

 

16-week Semester (begins and ends)  1/13/2025 through 5/10/2025 

12-week Semester (begins and ends)  1/13/2025 through 4/11/2025 

1st 8-week session (begins and ends)  1/13/2025 through 3/7/2025 

2nd 8-week session (begins and ends)  3/10/2025 through 5/10/2025 

4 week session (begins and ends)  4/14/2025 through 5/10/2025 

 

 

Please add any additional short-term sessions offered at your institution (if applicable):  

(Please note the specific length of the short-term session in the shaded boxes) 

 

Please list dates of all holidays/breaks (no classes) 

MLK (virtual) 1/20/2025 through 1/20/2025 

President’s Day (virtual) 2/17/2025 through 2/17/2025 

Spring Break 3/17/2025 through 3/21/2025 

Interscholastic Meet (virtual) 3/27/2025 through 3/27/2025 

 

 

***Note: Spring Break should be scheduled for the week that encompasses the third Wednesday in March*** 
                            

Spring Commencement date (if applicable) 5/9/2025 

  

Alternative Schedules (please describe any alternative schedules not already indicated above) 

  



Academic Calendar 2024-2025 

Page 4 

 

State Regents’ Policy 3.18 

 

 

 

Intersessions (classes that meet between regularly scheduled semesters or that meet between summer session and fall 

semester, between fall semester and spring semester, or between spring semester and summer session): 

 

 Fall 2024 Intersession  
(between summer 2024 and 

fall 2024) 

Spring/Winter 2024-

2025 Intersession  
(between fall 2024 and  

spring 2025) 

Summer 2025 

Intersession 
(between spring 2025 and 

summer 2025) 

 

Intersession begins 

 
Click here to enter a date. 

 

12/16/2024 

 
Click here to enter a date. 

 

Intersession ends 

  

1/10/2025 

 
Click here to enter a date. 

 

 

Summer 2024 (if applicable):  

Final add date 14-week classes: 5/9/2024 

Final drop date 14-week classes: 5/17/2024  

Final add date 10-week classes 5/22/2024 

Final drop date 10-week classes: 5/23/2024 

Final add date 1st 5-week classes: 5/20/2024 

Final drop date 1st 5-week classes: 5/23/2024 

Final add date 2nd 5-week classes: 6/24/2024 

Final drop date 2nd 5-week classes: 6/27/2024 

Final add date 4-week classes: 6/3/2024 

Final drop date 4-week classes: 6/5/2024 

Final add date 6-week classes: 5/13/2024 

Final drop date 6-week classes:  5/17/2024 

Final add date 1-week classes: 6/24/2024 

Final drop date 1-week classes:  6/24/2024 

Final add date 8-week classes: 5/23/2024 

Final drop date 8-week classes:  5/23/2024 

 

 

Fall 2024:  

Final add date 16-week classes: 8/23/2024 

Final drop date 16-week classes: 8/30/2024 

Final add date 12-week classes: 8/22/2024 

Final drop date 12-week classes: 8/28/2024 

Final add date 1st 8-week classes: 8/21/2024 



Academic Calendar 2024-2025 

Page 5 

 

State Regents’ Policy 3.18 

 

Final drop date 1st 8-week classes: 8/23/2024 

Final add date 2nd 8-week classes: 10/16/2024 

Final drop date 2nd 8-week classes: 10/16/2024 

Final add date 4-week classes: 11/11/2024 

Final drop date 4-week classes: 11/14/2024 

 

 

Spring 2025:  

Final add date 16-week classes: 1/17/2025 

Final drop date 16-week classes: 1/24/2025 

Final add date 12-week classes: 1/16/2025 

Final drop date 12-week classes: 1/23/2025 

Final add date 1st 8-week classes: 1/15/2025 

Final drop date 1st 8-week classes: 1/17/2025 

Final add date 2nd 8-week classes: 3/12/2025 

Final drop date 2nd 8-week classes: 3/13/2025 

Final add date 4-week classes: 4/14/2025 

Final drop date 4-week classes: 4/16/2025 

 

 

 

 

Signature of President __________________________________Date_____________________ 
 


	March 2024 Board Packet.pdf
	3-28-2024 Agenda
	February 2024 minutes
	Combined Feb 2024 Financials Report
	Retirement
	Landes Retirement Letter
	Bailey Resume
	Nursing Sim Lab and Parking Lot Memo from VP Reinhart
	Dave Haynie LLC - Nursing Sim Lab Renovation
	Affinity Corp - Motor Pool Secured Parking Lot bid
	Enterprise Agreement
	Emeritus Policy
	Program Modification
	SSC Academic Calendar 2024-25

	Goeller Emeritus Status



